
My Nestlé,
My Sri Lanka
Nestlé Lanka PLC
Annual Report 2020



02 Annual Report 2020Nestlé Lanka PLC 1

My Nestlé,
My Sri Lanka
Staying true to our promise of Good food, Good 
life, doing good for Sri Lanka has been at the heart 
of our business for 115 years. We have proudly 
served generations of Sri Lankans with good food 
and beverages from early childhood to old age, 
and supported them beyond our products to live a 
better life. Our commitment to do good and make 
a positive impact on health and wellbeing, the 
local community, and the planet is captured by the 
phrase “My Nestlé, My Sri Lanka”. It's an expression 
of who we are and what it means to work at  
Nestlé Lanka.

The report you hold shows glimpses of the great 
effort made by every one of our employees to 
enhance the lives of Sri Lankans across the island. 
In the face of a life-changing pandemic, we 
stand together with the nation – doing our part to 
welcome a healthier and happier future for all.
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A force for good
The world has changed. Being a force for good 
in this new reality is more important than ever, 
and we’re proud to be a company whose values 
aligns with those of our consumers, with products 
and services that are helping to address society’s 
greatest challenges. We have identified three 
interconnected areas where we can have the most 
impact: the individuals and families who place their 
trust in our products and brands, the communities 
where we operate, and the planet. We want our 
products to not just be good for our consumers and 
our families, but good for the community and good 
for the planet. We do this by:

•	 Offering tastier and healthier products 

•	 Educating about nutrition and a healthy diet 

•	 Encouraging an active lifestyle 

•	 Supporting the livelihoods of 20,000+ milk and 
coconut farmers

•	 Supporting youth employment 

•	 Fostering diversity and inclusion across the value 
chain 

•	 Greening our value chain from farm to table 

•	 Making our packaging 100% recyclable or 
reusable 

•	 Working together with stakeholders to launch 
public waste management schemes

Good for 
my family

Good for 
my community

Good for 
my planet

We’re proud to offer Sri Lankan individuals 
and families products and services that 
enable healthier and happier lives, from early 
childhood to old age. More than 90% of the 
products we sell in Sri Lanka are manufactured 
at our state-of-the-art factory in Pannala, made 
by Sri Lankans for Sri Lankans. In addition to 
making our products tastier and healthier, we 
are supporting and empowering millions of 
Sri Lankans to eat healthier and stay active 
through a number of educational programmes. 

We’re supporting better livelihoods for the 
community we live and work with, and 
promoting respect and diversity throughout our 
value chain. We are currently one of Sri Lanka’s 
largest buyers of fresh milk and one of the 
world’s largest coconut milk powder exporters, 
sustaining the livelihoods of more than 20,000 
Sri Lankan families through our business. We 
share our technical know-how, best practices 
and expertise, and provide them training, 
resources and other assistance. We are also 
helping thousands of Sri Lankan youth become 
more employable by upskilling them, and 
have created job opportunities for hundreds of 
young Sri Lankans over the last 10 years. 

We’re making bold and ambitious 
commitments to continuously improve our 
positive impact on the planet. We are caring 
for water, acting on climate change, and 
safeguarding the environment we live in. We 
are aggressively driving our 2025 target to 
make all of our packaging 100% recyclable or 
reusable, and launching collection, recycling 
and energy recovery schemes for our 
packaging waste. We are also working towards 
achieving net zero emissions across our value 
chain by 2050. 
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Our Performance

Doing well by doing good 
While driving good financial performance, 
we continue to care for the communities 
we operate in and one another, leaving a 
positive impact on the lives of people and 
nature. 

Revenue

Taxes

Earnings per share

LKR  37.87billion

LKR  4.7billion

LKR  54.85

Good for 
my family

Good for 
my community

Good for 
my planet

923 million

~1,000

14,500

~40,000

~400,000

16%*

Saved energy by

paid to ~14,000 local dairy farmers for 
fresh milk 

servings of micronutrient enriched 
products to consumers

children educated on nutrition and 
health through our Nestlé Healthy Kids 
e-learning platform  

people provided with free health checks 
and nutritional counselling through 
our Choose Wellness, Choose Nestlé 
programmes

Sri Lankans inspired to live a healthier, 
happier and fitter life through the Nestlé 
Family Club

children encouraged to get active  
through Milo sports programmes and 
activites 

contributed to the coconut industry as 
payment for producing fresh coconuts

donated to frontliners and vulnerable 
families impacted by the pandemic

young people directly reached through 
our Nestlé Needs YOUth programme, 
to help them become more employable 

Saved water by

Reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions by

Rs. 4.5 billion

Rs. 70 million

11%*

16,000+ 8%*

250 MT
50,000

70%+
of our packaging by weight is 
recyclable 

Eliminated plastic in our promotional 
items, reducing our plastic 
consumption by

children taught about responsible 
waste disposal through our School 
Waste Management Programme

*2010-2020 per tonne of production

Rs. 2.4 billion
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Innovations and 
Renovations

We are passionate about 
innovating and renovating 
our products, to create new 
and improved experiences that 
delight our consumers

Maggi Magic Masala Mix
Maggi Magic Masala Mix is a spice masala premix that 
can enhance the taste of South Asian cuisine. It is a 
delicious blend of 10 choice, aromatic roasted spices that 
lends a perfectly balanced tangy taste, irresistible aroma 
and colour to the most loved everyday dishes.  

Maggi Broad Noodle Family Pack
Our Maggi Family Meal Pack Broad Noodles provides a 
wholesome noodle base to recreate favourite recipes for 
the family. Fortified with calcium, it can be enhanced with 
vegetables, eggs, chicken, seafood or any other meat for 
added goodness. 

Nestomalt 
We enhanced Nestomalt’s nutritional profile to go beyond 
supporting energy yielding metabolism, to support 
immunity, learning and concentration, and healthy bones 
and muscle.

Maggi Papare Kottu  
Maggi Papare Kottu is a mouth-watering noodle dish 
made with onion, garlic, chilli and pepper. It is our first 
broad noodle product, offering the same mouthfeel as 
kottu. Enriched with calcium, and free of artificial flavours 
and colours, Maggi Papare Kottu is a tasty, convenient 
light meal. 

Ceregrow 
Our Ceregrow Wheat, Honey & Dates with milk is a 
junior cereal for toddlers between 1 and 3 years old. It is 
enriched with iron, zinc, vitamins A and C, calcium and 
probiotics (Bifidus BL). Its goodness was enhanced with a 
sugar reduction of more than 20%.  

World Coconut Day Award 
We were awarded by the Sri Lankan coconut authorities 
at an official event on World Coconut Day, in recognition 
of our high foreign exchange contribution as one of 
the world’s largest exporters of coconut milk powder, 
and the strategic planning support we extended to the 
government to help promote the Sri Lankan coconut 
industry. 

Most Valuable Consumer Brands 
We were ranked one of Sri Lanka’s Most Valuable Food and 
Beverage Brands in 2020 by Brand Finance, in its annual 
report of Sri Lanka’s Most Valuable Consumer Brands. 
This marks the eighth consecutive year in which we have 
been listed amongst Sri Lanka’s Top 10 ‘Most Valuable 
Consumer Brands’, securing an overall rank of number 9 
out of 100 corporate brands from varying industries.

Top 20 Multinational Corporate Brands 
We were ranked amongst the Top 20 ‘Multinational 
Corporate Brands’ of 2020 for the fifth consecutive year, 
securing a number three position.

Most Loved Brands of 2020
Our flagship brands Milo and Nestomalt secured a spot in 
the Top 20 ‘Most Loved Brands of 2020’ ranking, making it 
Milo’s fifth consecutive ranking and Nestomalt’s third time 
on the list. Milo was ranked at number 13, while Nestomalt 
maintained its rank at number 15 from a total of 125 
brands from varying categories. Our household favourite 
Maggi also secured a spot in the ranking and Nestlé and 
Nescafé were featured in the list for the first time.

Business Today Top 30
We were ranked Sri Lanka’s Number1 F&B company in 
2019-2020 in Business Today’s TOP 30. Featuring Sri 
Lanka’s best-performing entities across all industries,  the 
ranking recognizes organisations that achieve growth 
amidst challenges, and who demonstrate resilience 
and ingenuity in serving consumers and supporting the 
country’s economy.

Awards and 
Accolades

Best Corporate Citizen Sustainability Awards
We were announced the winner of the Community Relations 
award at the recent Best Corporate Citizens Sustainability 
Awards 2020, in recognition of our strong actions in making 
a positive impact on the local community, and enhancing 
quality of life for people across its value chain, from farmer 
to consumer. We were further recognised as one of Sri 
Lanka’s top 10 corporate citizens in 2020.
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Chairman’s Message

Our strategy to 
return to growth 
was implemented 
some time back. 
It started yielding 
results from the 
second half of 
2019, but it was 
heartening to 
see this positive 
momentum 
continuing 
throughout 2020.

Suresh Narayanan
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

2020 was a challenging year. Yet it brought opportunities 
to innovate and inspire, and to come closer together as a 
community. 

Our deep roots in the country, good understanding of 
the people, nutritional expertise, digital capabilities and 
innovative mindset helped us adapt quickly to changing 
consumer behaviour, and provide Sri Lankan families and 
the wider community with the support needed. Soon after 
the pandemic hit, people began looking for safe, high-
quality, locally-made products and services, which not 
only enhance health, wellbeing and immunity, but also 
helped them make and enjoy more home-made meals. In 
this new reality, our Nestlé brands continued to be seen, 
more than ever, as products they could trust and which 
met the needs of the whole family, from early childhood 
to old age. 

Our strategy to return to growth was implemented 
some time back. It started yielding results from the 
second half of 2019, but it was heartening to see this 
positive momentum continuing throughout 2020. In 
this unprecedented environment, we achieved a strong 
growth in our domestic retail business. It was able to 
offset the negative growth in our exports and out-of-
home businesses (Nestlé Professional), both of which 
were severely impacted by global and local lockdowns. 
Based on these results, the Board of Directors has 
approved an interim dividend of Rs. 35.00 per share, and 
proposed a final dividend of Rs. 20.00 per share, subject 
to the approval of shareholders at the upcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

Our strong foundation and values helped deliver the 
growth we promised for 2020. We would not have been 
able to achieve this without the dedication of our people 
and our partners. We saw their passion and determination 
rise to new heights, as they worked towards ensuring an 
uninterrupted supply of our products to the country, while 
managing their own personal challenges in adapting 
to the new reality. I thank all of them – our employees, 
suppliers, distributors and frontliners – from the bottom 
of my heart, for their unwavering commitment during this 
time, and you, our shareholders for your continued loyalty 
to the company. 

We have adapted to the new normal, but 2021 continues 
to pose its own set of challenges, including currency 
volatilities, milk availability and affordability, and a 
steep increase in coconut prices which can impact our 
export competitiveness. Nevertheless, we will continue 

our balanced pursuit of top-line growth, bottom-line 
performance, and improved capital efficiency, to deliver 
sustainable results with a purpose-driven approach. 

Nestlé stands for Good food, Good life. Quality of food 
and quality of life go together. What and how we eat and 
drink is fundamental to our health and wellness, today 
and for the future. We aim to be trusted and transparent, 
living up to our purpose and responsibilities to the local 
community, and the planet on which we live. That means 
responsibly manufacturing our products and managing 
our supply chain, bringing meaningful innovations to 
market, and building brands that delight and do good. 
We do this in a way that is true to the values our company 
has been built on for more than 150 years. 

In line with this, Nestlé globally has made some of the 
most ambitious environmental commitments to be 
set by any company in the world. By 2025 we will cut 
our emissions by 20%, make 100% of our packaging 
recyclable or reusable, and have all our sites powered 
through renewable electricity. By 2030, our aim is to 
reduce our emissions by 50% and to achieve net zero 
emissions by 2050. This journey starts now, and we 
will be announcing significant milestones in achieving 
this, starting from 2021. We are confident this will 
support future growth and generate value for you, our 
shareholders, and for the people of this country. 

Suresh Narayanan
Chairman

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021
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Managing Director’s 
Review

2020 was a year 
like no other. It was 
disruptive and full of 
challenges, but also 
full of opportunities 
– opportunities to 
deliver solid results 
and demonstrate how 
business can be a 
force for good even in 
a challenging business 
environment.

Fabrice Cavallin
Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

2020 was a year like no other. It was disruptive and full of 
challenges, but also full of opportunities – opportunities 
to deliver solid results and demonstrate how business 
can be a force for good even in a challenging business 
environment. 

Sri Lanka implemented what was likely one of the 
strictest lockdowns in the world during the first wave of 
the pandemic. Out-of-home movement was completely 
restricted and physical retail channels were shut down, 
permitting only home-deliveries. In this new reality, we 
had to switch to new ways of working literally overnight 
– implementing remote working, traveling with curfew 
passes where necessary, using masks and social 
distancing. We didn’t hesitate to invest in best-in-class 
safety protocols at our sites, providing employees with 
personal protective equipment and other resources to 
safely come in to work or work from home. We extended 
this care and support as much as possible to our 
business partners across the value chain. 

We swiftly developed a focused and flexible RTM 
(Route-to-Market) model to ensure the availability of 
our products. A strong omni-channel communication 
strategy, leveraging digital platforms, was implemented to 
demonstrate how our brands could best meet consumer 
needs. We accelerated and strengthened our presence 
on e-commerce, implemented door-to-door sales, and 
launched ‘Nestlé Mart’, a retail hub locator which shows 
users a list of grocery stores and supermarkets closest to 
them, which can deliver Nestlé products to their homes. 

I am proud to see that our quick decision-making, and 
the proactive approach of our highly motivated and 
committed workforce, helped us deliver our products 
without disruption. Our domestic retail sales experienced 
a solid double-digit growth, more than compensating for 
the degrowth of our exports and sizeable out-of-home 
business. 

At a time where we’re seeing significant shifts in 
consumer behaviour, we are encouraging local innovation 
and using it to shape our offerings to our consumers. 
Ensuring sustainability and nutrition in our products are 
our key priorities – we want to offer consumers products 
that are not just good for them but good for the planet. 

We launched two innovation challenges with Hatch, Sri 
Lanka’s largest incubator for start-ups, and with four 
universities – University of Kelaniya, University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura, University of Colombo and University 
of Moratuwa – calling for open innovation ideas from 
students, start-ups and entrepreneurs for green initiatives 
and products made with local ingredients, which meet 
local nutritional needs. In parallel, we are working on 23 
projects to substitute imports through local sourcing, by 
developing local suppliers. With these projects, we are 
driving an open innovation culture and supporting local 
communities.

We continued to drive and strengthen a number of other 
purpose-driven initiatives: 

•	 The Nestlé Family Club: Our corporate loyalty 
programme – We launched the Nestlé Family Club 
www.nestlefamilyclub.lk, our first corporate loyalty 
programme, to help Sri Lankans live healthier and 
support their physical and mental wellbeing in these 
unprecedented times. In addition to offering advice on 
nutrition, diet, and staying fit, it also provides tips and 
support to help take care of the family. 

•	 Supporting virtual learning for students – With close 
to 4.5 million Sri Lankan school children at home, we 
decided to launch an e-learning version of our long-
running Nestlé Healthy Kids programme. Hosted on 
the Ministry of Education’s website, it is Sri Lanka’s 
first official ‘Nutrition and Wellness’ (Poshanayai 
Suwadiviyai) e-learning programme. The programme 
helps children learn about nutrition, health, food 
safety and hygiene, and an active lifestyle. 

•	 Supporting livelihoods – We donated approximately 
LKR 70 million to assist frontline workers and 
vulnerable families whose livelihoods were impacted 
by the pandemic. We accepted milk from all farmers 
who could not sell to their regular channels during the 
height of the pandemic, to protect their livelihoods in 
those uncertain times. We also adapted our Nestlé 
Needs YOUth programme to reach 10,000 young 
people on digital platforms, helping them learn the 
skills they need to become more employable, and 
succeed in a new virtual workplace. 
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Managing Director’s 
Review
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•	 Shaping a waste-free future – In working towards 
our commitment to make our packaging 100% 
recyclable by 2025, I’m happy to say that more than 
80% of our packaging by weight is already recyclable. 
We have also completely stopped the use of plastic 
items in our promotions, eliminating about 250 MT 
of plastic a year. We launched our first ever waste 
collection programme with the Central Environmental 
Authority and Ministry of Education, to manage waste 
and create awareness about responsible disposal 
in schools. We aim to reach approximately 400,000 
students across 250 schools by the end of 2022. 

Developing and implementing these initiatives amidst 
a pandemic was not easy but it was rewarding and 
motivating. We’re proud to have been recognised as a 
force for good by winning the Best Corporate Citizen 
Sustainability Award for Community Relations, and being 
recognised as one of Sri Lanka’s Top 10 Best Corporate 
Citizens in 2020 by the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce. 

I want to thank all our employees for their continuous 
dedication and commitment. They went over and beyond 
the call of duty to keep our factory running, our trucks 
on the road, and the shelves restocked. Together we 
delivered a solid performance, demonstrating agility, 
teamwork, and fast decision making. I also want to 
express my gratitude to our consumers and business 
partners, who supported our business and stayed loyal 
to us, and to you, our shareholders, for your continued 
support, trust and confidence. 

We expect challenging times to continue into 2021. If 
anything, however, we have proven that we are resilient 
and innovative, tuned in to the needs of our consumers, 
communities and people. We are preparing for the future 
by accelerating innovation, embracing new platforms 
and technologies, and delivering relevant products and 
services to delight our consumers. We are also taking a 
leadership role in sustainability, accelerating our actions 
to tackle climate change. 2021 will be an exciting year, 
with many developments on this front. 

I am confident that we can continue to deliver top and 
bottom line growth, while making a real contribution to 
society and acting as a force for good. 

Fabrice Cavallin
Managing Director

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021

ys;j;a fldgia ysñlrejks"  

fooyia úiai ^2020& j¾Ih wfkl=;a j¾Ihka fuka fkdj" 

fndfyda ndOl yd wNsfhda.j,ska msreKq j¾Ihls' tfia jqjo  th 

kj wjia:d /ilska hqla; jQ jirla jQjd fukau" ÿIalr jHdmdßl 

jd;djrKhl§ jqj o hym;a m%;sM, Wfoid jHdmdrhkayg  

n,hla úh yelafla flfiao hkak fmkakqï lsÍug uyÕ=‍ 

wjia:djla ,enqKq j¾Ihls' 

fldúâ jix.;fha m<uq /,a, wjia:dfõ§ Y%S ,xldj" wka 

rgj,g idfmalaIj nrm;, yqol,d l%shdud¾.hlg ^f,dlavjqka& 

wj;S¾K jQ w;r" uq¿ rfÜu ck;djg ;u ksfjiaj,ska neyerg 

tau ;ykï flre‚' tfukau fj<|ie,g f.dia wjYH 

nvqndysrdÈh ñ,§ .ekSu j<ld,kq ,enQ w;r" wdydr øjH we;=¿ 

w;HdjYH øjH ksjigu f.kajd .ekSug ck;djg isÿúh' fuu 

kj mßirh ;=< wmg o jHdmdr fufyhqï fjkia lsÍug isÿúh' 

Èjd rd;%S fkdn,d rdcldß lsÍug;a" ld¾hd,fhka neyer ÿria: 

rdcldß l%uhg wkq.; ùug;a" we¢ß kS;s wjir m;% Ndú; 

lrñka rdcldß  i|yd tyd fuyd hdug;a isÿjQ w;r" uqyqKq 

wdjrK me<£u;a" iudc ÿria:Ndjh mj;ajd.ekSu;a wksjd¾h 

úh' wmf.a wdh;k iy l¾udka;Yd,d mßY%hkays fyd|u 

;;a;ajfha wdrlaIs; l%ufõo ia:dms; lsÍug;a" fiajlhskag 

fm!oa.,sl wdrlaIl WmlrK (PPE) ,nd§ug;a" Tjqkag ksjfia 

isg wdrlaIs;j /lshd ia:dkh n,d taug  wjYH wfkl=;a 

iïm;a ,nd§u fukau ksjfia isg rdÊldÍ lghq;=  lsÍug wjYH 

myiqlï i,id ,nd§ug;a wms l%shd lf<uq' fuu iyfhda.h 

wmf.a jákdlï odufha isák fiiq jHdmdßl yjq,alrejka fj; 

o yels muK ,nd§ug;a wms lghq;= lf<uq'  

wmf.a ksIamdok ck;dj fj; iemhSfï kj kuHYS,S l%ufõohla 

b;d blaukska iliñka ck;djg fkiaf,a ksIamdok lrd 

m%fõYùfï yelshdj Wodlrÿksuq' ;j o mdßfNda.sl wjYH;djka 

imqrd,Sug wmf.a ksIamdok ikakdu i;= yelshdj ms<sn| äðg,a 

wjldYh mq¿,a lrñka ikaksfõokh lsÍug o wms mshjr 

.;suq' tfukau bf,lafg%dksla jd‚cH fiajdjkag msúfiñka 

ck;djg wjYH ksIamdok Tjqkaf.a fodrlvgu iemhSug;a" 

tfukau mdßfNda.slhska yg ;u ksfjia iómfha msysá"  fkiaf,a 

ksIamdok f.kajd.; yels wf,úie,a ms<sn| f;dr;=re oek 

oek.ekSug yels jk f,i ‘Nestlé Mart’ kñka kj fiajdjla 

y÷kajd§ug o wmg yelsúh' 

wmf.a ;SrK .ekSfï ld¾hlaIu;djh;a" Woafhda.Su;a 

ld¾huKav,fha mQ¾j.dó l%shdldÍ;ajh;a ksid fkdlvjd 

wmf.a ksIamdok fj<|fmd<g iemhSug wmg yelsjQ nj uu 

mjikafka   buy;a  wNsudkfhks' fï ;;a;ajh yuqfõ wmf.a 

.Dyia: ksIamdok mßfNdackh 10]g jvd jeä uÜgulska j¾Okh 

lr.ekSug wmg yelsjQ neúka" wmkhk fj<|fmd< iy .Dyia: 

fkdjk ksIamdok mßfNdackfha wvd,ùu yuqfõ jqj o id¾:lj 

bÈßhg hdug wmg yelsúh' 

mdßfNda.sl yeisÍï rgdfõ ie,lsh hq;= fjkialï isÿjk fujka 

ld,hl§" foaYSh kfjd;amdok i|yd Èß §ug;a" tu ixl,am wm 

úiska mdßfNda.slhska fj; msßkuk ksIamdok yev.ekaùfï,d 

fhdod .ekSïg;a  wm úiska lghq;= lr we;' fmdaIKfhka wkQk 

ksIamdok wmf.a mdßfNda.slhkag ,nd§u  fukau mßirhg  

ys;lr  ksIamdok t<soelaùu wmf.a wjYH;dj neúka wmf.a 

ksIamdokj, ;sridrNdjh iy fmdaIK ix>gl ;yjqre lsÍug 

lghq;= lsÍu wmf.a uQ,sl mrud¾:hka  njg m;aj ;sfí' 

tys m%;sM,hla f,i" kj jHjidh ixj¾Ok i|yd wdOdr 

wkqn, ,ndfok" Y%S ,xldfõ úYd,;u wdh;khla jk yeÉ 

wdh;kh iuÕ tlaj kfjda;amdok wNsfhda.;d jevigyka 

folla   l%shdjg kxjkakg wms lghq;= lf<uq' tla jevigykla 

Y%S ,xldfõ rdcH úYaj úoHd, y;rla ^le,‚h úYaj úoHd,h" Y%S 

chj¾Okmqr úYaj úoHd,h" fld<U úYaj úoHd,h iy fudrgqj 

úYaj úoHd,h&   yd tlaj wdrïN flre‚' wfkla jevigyk 

l%shd;aul flrefKa kj-jHjidh iy jHjidhlhska  i|yd 

újD; wNsfhda.;d jHdmD;shla f,isks' tys§ foaYSh fmdaIK 

wjYH;djkag iß,k f,i foaYSh wdydr wuqøjH Ndú; lrñka 

;sridr iy kfjdama;dmok m%fõYhlska hq;=j kj ksIamdok 

t<soelaùu i|yd iriú isiqkaf.ka" jHjidhlhskaf.ka fukau" 

kj- jHjidhlhskaf.ao woyia ,nd.ekq‚' Bg iu.dój foaYSh 

iemhqï yryd wdkhk wdfoaY isÿlsÍfï wruq‚ka jHdmD;s 23la  

o l%shd;aul flf¾' fuu jHdmD;Ska yryd újD; kfjda;amdok 

ixialD;shla f.dvke.Sug;a" foaYSh m%cdjg iydh ùug;a   

wruqKq lr we;' 

fujka wruqKq flakaø lr.;a ;j;a jevigyka /ilau wms 

wLKavj mj;ajdf.k hkakg lghq;= lr we;af;uq' 

•	 The Nestlé Family Club: <ne¢ mdßfNda.sl jevigyk- 

¡ fuu wNsfhda.d;aul ld,fha§ Y%S ,dxlslhskag 

fi!LHu;a Ôú;hla i|yd" Tjqkaf.a ldhsl iy udkisl 

hymeje;aug odhlùu ùu wruqKq lr.ksñka" wmf.a 

m<uq <ne¢ mdßfNda.sl jevigyk "Nestlé Family 
Club (www'nestlefamilyclub'lk)" kñka Èh;a flre‚' 

fmdaIKh" wdydrfõ, iy iúu;aj isàu ms<sn| Wmfoia §ug 

wu;rj" mjqf,a /ljrKh fjkqfjka iydh iy f;dr;=re 

iemhSu o fuu jevigyfka wruqKq fõ' 

•	 isiqkaf.a äðg,a wOHdmk lghq;=j,g iydh ùu ¡- ñ,shk 

4'5lg wdikak mdi,a isiqka m%udKhla ;u ksfjiaj, isg 

bf.kSï lghq;= lrk neúka" wmf.a fkiaf,a fy,aÈ lsâia 

(Nestlé Healthy Kids) jevigyk wka;¾cd, myiqlï 

yryd ia:dms; lsÍug wms mshjr  .;suq' wOHdmk wud;HxY 

fjí wvúh yrydzfmdaIKhhs iqj Èúhh’Z kñka ks¾udKh jQ  

fuh Y%S ,xldfõ m<uq fmdaIK iy iqj;d ud¾..; bf.kqï 

jevigykhs' orejkag fmdaIKh" fi!LH" wdydr iqrlaIs;;dj 

yd ikSmdrlaIdj" l%shdYS,S Ôjk rgdj wdÈh ms<sn| oekqu 

iemhSug fï yryd wjia:dj Wodù we;' 

•	 Ôjfkdamdh wdOdr -¡ jix.;fhka Ôjfkdamdhka n,mEug 

,lajQ yd jix.;h yuqfõ bÈß fm< isg lghq;= lrk 

fiajlhskag iy wjodkug ,laúh yels mjq,aj,g Wmldr 

lsÍu i|yd wms remsh,a ñ,shk 70 lg wêl uqo,la mß;Hd. 
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l<ukdldr wOHlaI;=udf.a 

iudf,dapkh

Kfhikj;Jtg; gzpg;ghsupd; 

kPsha;T

md;Gs;s gq;Fjhuu;fNs> 

2020 vd;gJ Kd;ndg;NghijAk; Nghyy;yhj xU Mz;lhf 

mikag;ngw;wJ. midj;Jk; rPu;Fiyf;fg;gl;lJld;> 

rthy;fs; epiwe;jjhf ,Ue;jJ. MdhYk;> rthy;kpf;f xU 

tzpfr;#oypy; $l mJ vt;thW ed;ikf;fhd xU khngUk; 

rf;jpahfj; jpfo KbAk; vd;gijf; fhz;gpf;Fk; tifapy; 

tYthd ngWNgWfis ntspf;nfhz;L tUtjw;fhd 

tha;g;Gfs; epiwe;j xU Mz;lhfTk; mike;Js;sJ. 

njhw;WNeha; gutypd; Kjy; miyapd; NghJ cyfpd; 

kpff; fLikahd Culq;Fr;rl;lq;fspy; xd;iw ,yq;if 

mKy;gLj;jpapUe;jJ. tPl;bw;F ntspNaahd elkhl;lq;fs; 

Kw;wpYkhf fl;Lg;gLj;jg;gl;lJld;> Neub rpy;yiw 

tpahghu topKiwfs; %lg;gl;L> tPl;bw;fhd tpepNahfq;fs; 

khj;jpuNk mDkjpf;fg;gl;bUe;jd. ,e;j Gjpa ajhu;j;jj;jpy;> 

gzpfis Kd;ndLg;gjw;fhd Gjpa topKiwfis xNu 

,utpNyNa ehk; Nkw;nfhs;s Ntz;ba fl;lhak; vOe;jJ. 

gzpafj;jpw;F ntspapypUe;Nj gzpfis Kd;ndLj;jy;> 

Njitahd ,lq;fspy; Culq;F mDkjpg; gj;jpuq;fSld; 

gpuahzk; nra;jy;> Kff;ftrq;fs; mzpjy; kw;Wk; 

r%f ,ilntspiag; gpd;gw;Wjy; Nghd;w gy;NtW Gjpa 

topKiwfisf; filg;gpbg;gjw;F ehk; epu;g;ge;jpf;fg;gl;Nlhk;. 

vq;fs; gzpj;jsq;fspy; kpfr; rpwe;j juj;jpyhd ghJfhg;G 

newpKiwfspy; KjyPL nra;a ehq;fs; jaq;ftpy;iy. 

ghJfhg;ghf gzpf;F tUif je;J tPL jpUk;gNth my;yJ 

tPl;bypUe;J gzpia Kd;ndLf;fNth vkJ gzpahsu;fSf;F 

jdpg;gl;l ghJfhg;G cgfuzq;fs; kw;Wk; gpw tsq;fis 

toq;fpNdhk;. vkJ kjpg;Gr; rq;fpyp KOtJk; vq;fs; tzpf 

$l;lhsu;fSf;Fk; ,e;j mf;fiwiaAk;> MjuitAk; 

Kbe;jtiu toq;fpNdhk;.  

vkJ tzpf Nehf;fj;ij milag;ngw;W> re;ijapy; 

tsu;r;rpia Jupjg;gLj;Jk; Kfkhf> ehk; ,yf;F itj;j 

thbf;ifahsu;fSf;F jahupg;Gf;fs; fpilf;fg;ngWtij 

cWjp nra;tjw;fhf mtw;wpd; toq;fy; topKiwfis 

nefpo;Tg;Nghf;Filajhf ehk; Jupjkhf khw;wpaikj;Njhk;. 

vq;fs; tu;j;jfehkq;fs; Efu;Nthupd; Njitfis vt;thW 

kpfr; rpwg;ghfg; G+u;j;jp nra;a KbAk; vd;gij ep&gpf;f> 

b[pl;ly; khu;f;fq;fspd; mD$yj;Jld; tYthd gy;NtWgl;l 

topKiwfspyhd jfty;njhlu;ghly;fisAk; ehq;fs; 

Kd;ndLj;Njhk;. kpd;-tu;j;jfj;jpy; vkJ nraw;ghLfis ehk; 

tYg;gLj;jp> tpiuTgLj;jpaJld;> tPl;Lf;F tPL tpw;gid 

nra;ag;gLk; topKiwfisAk; Muk;gpj;Njhk;. rpy;yiw 

tpw;gid ikaq;fis fz;lwpa cjTfpd;w ‘Nestlé Mart’ 
,idAk; ehq;fs; Muk;gpj;Njhk;. ,J Efu;NthUf;F mtu;fs; 

,Uf;fpd;w ,lj;jpw;F mUfhikapy; ne];Ny jahupg;Gf;fisf; 

nfhz;Ls;s gyruf;F filfs; kw;Wk; gy;nghUs; mq;fhbfs; 

vq;nfy;yhk; cs;sd vd;w tpguq;fisf; fhz;gpg;gJld;> 

mjd; JizAld; ne];Ny jahupg;Gfis mtu;fsJ 

tPLfSf;Nf tpepNahfk; nra;ag;ngwf;$ba Vw;ghLfis 

Nkw;nfhs;s KbAk;.

tpiuthf jPu;khdj;ij Nkw;nfhs;Sk; vkJ jpwd; 

kw;Wk; ce;Jrf;jpAk;> mu;g;gzpg;Gk; kpf;f gzpahsu;fspd; 

nray;jpwd;kpf;f mZFKiw> vq;fs; jahupg;Gfis ve;jtpj 

jq;FjilAkpd;wp toq;f cjtpaJ vd;gjpy; ngUkpjk; 

nfhs;fpNwd;. vq;fs; cs;ehl;L rpy;yiw tpw;gidahdJ 

tYthd ,ul;il ,yf;f tsu;r;rpf;F Kfq;nfhLj;jJld;> 

,J vq;fs; Vw;Wkjpapd; tPo;r;rp kw;Wk; tPl;Lf;F ntspNaahd 

tzpfj;jpy; Vw;gl;l tPo;r;rp Mfpatw;Wf;Fk; Nkyhf vkJ 

xl;Lnkhj;j tzpfj;jpw;Fk; <Lnra;Js;sJ.

Efu;Nthupd; gof;ftof;fq;fspy; Fwpg;gplj;jf;f khw;wq;fis 

ehq;fs; fhz;fpd;w xU fhyfl;lj;jpy;> cs;ehl;by; 

Gj;jhf;fj;ij Cf;Ftpj;J> vq;fs; Efu;NthUf;F 

vq;fs; toq;fy;fis tbtikf;f mjidg; gad;gLj;jp 

tUfpNwhk;. vq;fs; jahupg;Gfspy; Ngz;jfik kw;Wk; 

Cl;lr;rj;ij cWjpg;gLj;Jtjw;F ehq;fs; Kf;fpaj;Jtk; 

mspj;Js;sikahy;> Efu;NthUf;F kl;Lky;yhJ> ekJ 

G+kpf;Fk; ed;ikgaf;Fk; jahupg;Gfis toq;f tpUk;GfpNwhk;.

,yq;ifapd; Muk;g tu;j;jf Kaw;rpfSf;fhd 

kpfg;ngupa tsu;ikakhd Hatch clDk;> fsdp> = 

n[atu;j;jdGu> nfhOk;G kw;Wk; nkhul;Lit Mfpa 

ehd;F gy;fiyf;fofq;fSlDk; ,ize;J ,U Gj;jhf;f 

rthy; Nghl;bfis ehk; Muk;gpj;Njhk;. khztu;fsplkpUe;J 

gfpuq;fkhd Gj;jhf;f rpe;jidfis ntspf;nfhz;L 

tUtjw;Fk;> cs;ehl;L Cl;lr;rj;J Njitfisg; G+u;j;jp 

nra;Ak; tifapy; cs;ehl;L %yg; nghUl;fisf; 

nfhz;L jahupf;fg;gl;l jahupg;GfSf;fhd gRik Ngzy; 

Kaw;rpfSf;fhf Muk;g tu;j;jf Kaw;rpahsu;fs; kw;Wk; 

njhopy; Kaw;rpahsu;fSf;F ehk; miog;G tpLj;Njhk;. 

,jw;F ,izahf> cs;ehl;L toq;Fdu;fspd; tsu;r;rpf;F 

cjtp> ,wf;FkjpfSf;Fg; gjpyhf cs;ehl;bNyNa 

%yg;nghUl;fisg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;Sk; 23 nraw;jpl;lq;fis 

ehk; Kd;ndLj;J tUfpd;Nwhk;. ,r;nraw;jpl;lq;fspd; %ykhf 

ehk; gfpuq;f Gj;jhf;f fyhr;rhuj;ij Kd;ndLj;J> cs;ehl;L 

r%fq;fSf;F cjtp tUfpd;Nwhk;.

ew;gyid mspf;Fk; ce;Jrf;jpAld; Kd;ndLf;fg;gLk; Vida 

gy Kaw;rpfis ehq;fs; njhlu;e;J tYg;gLj;jp> Kd;ndLj;J 

tUfpd;Nwhk;:  

•	 ne];Ny /ngkpyp fpsg; (Nestlé Family Club): 
vkJ epWtd ek;gpf;if mq;fj;Jtj; jpl;lk; - ehk; 

Kd;ndg;NghJk; Kfq;nfhLj;jpuhj tifapy; jw;Nghija 

fhyfl;lq;fspy; ,yq;if kf;fs; MNuhf;fpakhf tho 

cjTtjw;Fk;> mtu;fspd; cly; kw;Wk; cs eyid 

Mjupg;gjw;Fk; vq;fs; Kjy; epWtd ek;gpf;if mq;fj;Jtj; 

jpl;lkhd www.nestlefamilyclub.lk vd;w ne];Ny /

ngkpyp fpsg;gpid ehk; Muk;gpj;Njhk;. Cl;lr;rj;J> rpwe;j 

czT Kiw kw;Wk; cly;uPjpahf jplfhj;jpukhf ,Ug;gJ 

Fwpj;j MNyhridfis toq;FtNjhL kl;Lky;yhky;> 

FLk;gj;ij ftdpj;Jf;nfhs;s cjTk; cjtpf;Fwpg;Gfs; 

kw;Wk; cjtpiaAk; ,J toq;FfpwJ. 

lf<uq'  tfukau fjk;a .ekqïlrejkag lsß imhñka isá 

iy jix.;h fya;=fjka tu iemhqï cd, ì|jeàu ksid 

wmyiq;djg m;aj isá f.dùkaf.ka mjd lsß ñ,§ .ksñka 

Tjqkaf.a Ôjfkdamdh wdrlaId lr§ug wms l%shdlf<uq' äðg,a 

ud¾.fhka ;reK ;re‚hka 10"000 la fj; wmf.a fkiaf,a 

kSâia hQ;a jevigyk yryd jD;a;Sh ksmqK;d jeäÈhqKq 

lr.ekSug Wmldr ùu  ;=<ska" jeä /lshd wjia:djla i|yd 

Tjqkag we;s wjldYh by< kxjd .kakg wm Wmldr lf<uq'  

•	 wmøjHj,ska f;dr wkd.;hla ¡- j¾I 2025 jk úg wmf.a 

weiqreï 100] m%;spl%SlrKh lsÍfï b,lalh fjkqfjka 

lghq;= lrñka hk .ufka§" fï jk úg;a wmf.a 

weiqreïj,ska 80] lg jvd nr wkqj m%;spl%SlrKh l< yels 

nj mejiSu i;=gg lreKls' wmf.a m%j¾Ok lghq;=j,§ 

ma,diaála NdKav Ndú;h iïmQ¾Kfhkau kj;d oud we;s 

w;r tu.ska jirlg fuÜ%la fgdka 250 la muK ma,diaála 

Ndú;fhka neyer lsßug yelsù we;' wmøjH tl;= lsÍfï 

wmf.a m<uq jevigyk uOHu mßir wêldßh yd wOHdmk 

wud;HdxYh iuÕ Èh;a lr we;s w;r" 2022 jir wjika jk 

úg mdi,a 250 la ;=< isiqka 400"000lg wêl msßila yd tlaj 

li< l<ukdlrKh iy j.lSfuka hq;=j li, neyer lsÍu 

ms<sn|j oekquj;a lsÍu fï yryd b,lal lr we;' 

jix.;hla uOHfha fun÷ uq,msÍï wdrïN lsÍu iy l%shd;aul 

lsÍu myiq ld¾hhla fkdjQ kuq;a th m%;sM,odhl iy  

WfoHda.su;a lghq;a;la úh' Y%S ,xld jd‚c uKav,h úiska 2020 

jir i|yd f;dard.;a  Y%S ,xldfõ fyd|u wdh;ksl mqrjeishka 

10 fokd w;rg tlaùu ;=<ska iy" tys§ m%cd iïnkaO;d wxYfhka 

fyd|u wdh;ksl mqrjeis ;sridr iïudkh Èkd .ekSfukao" 

hym; i|yd jQ n,fõ.hla f,i nqyquka ,eîu .ek wms b;d 

wdvïnr fjuq'

wmf.a ksIamdok lghq;= wLKavj lrf.k hñka" fnodyeÍï 

cd,h fkdlvjd mj;ajdf.k hñka iy fj<|ie,a kej; 

fkiaf,a ksIamdokj,ska mqrjd,Su i|yd ;u idudkH rdcldßhg 

Tíng f.dia lghq;= l< wmf.a ish¨‍ fiajlhskaf.a wLKav 

lemùu iy ffO¾hh ms<sn| fï wjia:dfõ§ uu Tjqkg 

fnfyúka lD;{fjñ' wms tlaj tldfuka" läirj" ld¾hlaIuj" 

Yla;su;a ld¾h idOkhla <Õdlr.;suq' wmf.a jHdmdrhg 

iyfhda.h ÿka iy wmg <ne¢j isá wmf.a mdßfNda.slhskag iy 

jHdmdßl yjq,alrejkag fukau wmf.a fldgia ysñhka f,i Tn 

ieu oelajQ wLKav iyfhda.h iy  wm flfrys ;enQ   úYajdih 

fjkqfjka uu ia;+;smQ¾jl jkafkñ' 

fuu wNsfhda.d;aul ld,h 2021 jir mqrd o mj;skq we;ehs wms 

wfmalaId lruq' flfia fj;;a" fkiaf,a iud.u  hkq wmf.a 

mdßfNda.slhskaf.a" m%cdjkaf.a iy ck;djf.a wjYH;djkag 

wkql+,j lghq;= lrk iy Yla;su;a yd kjHlrKfhka fyì 

iud.ula nj Tmamq lr wjika h' kjHlrKhka fõ.j;a lsÍu" 

kj m%fõY iy ;dlaIKhka je,| .ekSu iy wmf.a  

mdßfNda.slhska i;=gq lsÍu i|yd wod< ksIamdok yd fiajdjka 

,nd §u yryd wms wkd.;h i|yd iQodkï fjñka isákafkuq' 

foaY.=‚l úm¾hdihkag uqyqK §u i|yd wmf.a l%shdud¾. 

fõ.j;a lrñka" ;sridrNdjh i|yd wms kdhl;aj ld¾hNdrhla 

bgq lrñka ákafkuq' fï wkqj 2021 jir" fujka  bÈß.dó 

ixj¾Ok l%s l%shdjkaf.ka imsß" iqúfYaIS jirla jkq we;'

iudchg ienE odhl;ajhla ,ndfoñka" hym; i|yd jQ n,fõ.

hla f,i wx. iïmQ¾K j¾Okhla fjkqfjka fkdlvjd lghq;=  

lsÍug wmg yelsjkq we;ehs  uu úYajdi lrñ' 

*eíßia lej,ska  

l<ukdldr wOHlaI

fkiaf,a ,xld mSt,aiS 

2021 fmnrjdß 18 
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Our long-term value creation model is based on the balanced 
pursuit of resource-efficient top-line and bottom-line growth, 
and improved capital efficiency. 

Board of Directors

We create value by:

- 	 Increasing growth 
through innovation 
and differentiation, 
and offering relevant 
products and 
solutions to our 
consumers.

- 	 Improving 
operational 
efficiency, with the 
goal to increase our 
underlying trading 
operating profit 
margin 

- 	 Allocating our 
resources and 
capital with 
discipline and clear 
priorities.

Kfhikj;Jtg; gzpg;ghsupd; 

kPsha;T

•	 khztu;fSf;F nka;epfu; topKiw fw;wYf;F cjTjy; 

- ,yq;ifapy; 4.5 kpy;ypaDf;Fk; mjpfkhd rpWtu;fs; 

tPLfSf;Fs; Klf;fg;gLk; epiyik vOe;jikahy;> 

ePz;lfhykhf ehk; Kd;ndLj;J tUfpd;w Nestlé 
Healthy Kids programme vd;w nraw;jpl;lj;jpd; kpd;-
fw;wy; tbtj;ij Muk;gpg;gjw;F ehk; jPu;khdpj;Njhk;. 

fy;tp mikr;rpd; ,izaj;jsj;jpy; ,lk;ngw;Ws;s 

,J> ,yq;ifapd; Kjd;Kjy; cj;jpNahfG+u;t 

~Cl;lr;rj;J kw;Wk; MNuhf;fpak;| njhlu;ghd kpd; 

fw;wy; nraw;jpl;lkhFk;. Cl;lr;rj;J> MNuhf;fpak;> 

czTg; ghJfhg;G> Rfhjhuk; kw;Wk; clw;gapw;rp kpf;f 

tho;f;if Kiw gw;wp fw;Wf;nfhs;s ,r;nraw;jpl;lkhdJ  

rpWtu;fSf;F cjtpAs;sJ.

•	 [PtNdhghaj;jpw;F cjTjy; - njhw;WNeha; guty; 

fhuzkhf [PtNdhghaj;jpw;F epu;f;fjpf;F MshfpAs;s 

Kd;fs gzpahsu;fs; kw;Wk; ghjpf;fg;glf;$ba 

FLk;gq;fSf;F cjt &gh 70 kpy;ypaDf;Fk; mjpfkhd 

ed;nfhil toq;fpAs;Nshk;. njhw;WNehapd; cr;r 

epiyikapy; jq;fs; tof;fkhd khu;f;fq;fSf;F tpw;gid 

nra;a Kbahj midj;J ghw;gz;izahsu;fsplkpUe;Jk; 

ghiy ehq;fs; Vw;Wf;nfhz;Nlhk;. epr;rakw;w 

fhyfl;lq;fspy; mtu;fspd; [PtNdhghaj;ij ghJfhf;f 

,J cjtpAs;sJ. b[pl;ly; jsq;fspy; 10>000 

,isQu;>Atjpfis vl;Ltjw;fhf vq;fs; Nestlé Needs 
YOUth epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;ijAk; ehq;fs; Njitf;Nfw;g 

khw;wpaikj;J> mtu;fs; $Ljy; Ntiytha;g;igg; ngw;W> 

Gjpa nka;epfu; gzpaplj;jpy; ntw;wp ngwj; Njitahd 

jpwd;fisf; fw;Wf;nfhs;s cjtp tUfpd;Nwhk;.

•	 fopT ,y;yhj vjpu;fhyj;ijj; Njhw;Wtpj;jy; - 2025 Mk; 

Mz;lstpy; vq;fs; nghjpaply; rhu;e;j nghUl;fis 100% 

kPs;Row;rp nra;af;$bajhf khw;Wk; vq;fs; cWjpg;ghl;il 

Nehf;fp nray;gLtjpy;> vilapd; mbg;gilapy; vq;fs; 

nghjpaply; nghUl;fspy; 80% f;Fk; mjpfkhdit 

Vw;fdNt kPs;Row;rp nra;af;$bajhf cs;sd vd;gij 

ehd; kfpo;r;rpAld; $wpf;nfhs;s tpUk;Gfpd;Nwd;. 

vq;fs; tpsk;gug; nghUl;fspy; gpsh];bf; nghUl;fspd; 

gad;ghl;il ehq;fs; Kw;wpYkhf epWj;jp> Mz;Lf;F 

250 nkl;upf; njhd; gpsh];bf;if mg;Gwg;gLj;jpAs;Nshk;. 

fopTfis Kfhikj;Jtk; nra;tjw;Fk;> ghlrhiyfspy; 

nghWg;Gzu;Tkpf;f topapy; fopTfis mfw;Wjy; Fwpj;j 

tpopg;Gzu;it Vw;gLj;Jtjw;Fk; kj;jpa Rw;Wr;R+oy; mjpfhu 

rig kw;Wk; fy;tp mikr;R Mfpatw;Wld; ,ize;J 

vq;fs; Kjd;Kjy; fopT Nrfupg;G jpl;lj;ij Muk;gpj;Njhk;. 

2022 Mk; Mz;bd; ,Wjpf;Fs; 250 ghlrhiyfspy; 

Rkhu; 400>000 khztu;fis vl;Lk; ,yf;Fld; nraw;gl;L 

tUfpd;Nwhk;. 

njhw;WNeha; epiyikf;F kj;jpapy; ,e;j Kaw;rpfis 

jpl;lkpLtJk;> nray;gLj;JtJk; vspjhdJ my;y> Mdhy; 

mJ gydspg;gjhf cs;sJld;> kpFe;j Cf;fkspf;fpwJ. 

,yq;if tu;j;jf rk;Nksdj;jplkpUe;J 2020 Mk; Mz;by; 

r%f cwTfSf;fhd rpwe;j tu;j;jf epWtd Ngz;jifik 

tpUij ntd;wjd; %yKk;> ,yq;ifapd; kpfr; rpwe;j 10 

tu;j;jf epWtdq;fspy; xd;whf mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;ljd; %yKk; 

ed;ikf;fhd rf;jpahf mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;ljpy; ehk; ngUik 

mile;Js;Nshk;.

njhlu;r;rpahd mu;g;gzpg;G kw;Wk; <Lghl;bw;fhf vq;fs; 

Copau;fs; midtUf;Fk; ehd; ed;wp $w tpUk;GfpNwd;. 

vq;fs; njhopw;rhiyia ,aq;f itg;gjw;Fk;> vq;fs; 

ghu Cu;jpfs; njUj;njUthfr; nrd;W> vkJ jahupg;Gf;fs; 

tpw;gid ikaq;fspy; NghJkhd mstpy; ifapUg;gpy; 

,Ug;gjw;Fk; jkJ tof;fkhd flikf;Fk; mg;ghw;nrd;W 

mtu;fs; jkJ filikAzu;it kpfr; rpwg;ghf 

ntspg;gLj;jpAs;sdu;. ehq;fs; xd;Wgl;l ciog;gpd; %ykhf 

tYthd ngWNgw;iw ntspg;gLj;jp> RWRWg;G> xd;Wgl;l 

ciog;G kw;Wk; tpiuthf jPu;khdk; vLf;Fk; Mw;wiy 

ep&gpj;Js;Nshk;. vq;fs; tzpfj;ij Mjupj;j kw;Wk; 

vq;fSf;F tpRthrkhf ,Ue;j vq;fs; Efu;Nthu; kw;Wk; 

tzpf $l;lhsu;fSf;Fk;> njhlu;r;rpahd MjuT> ek;gpf;if 

kw;Wk; tpRthrj;ijf; fhz;gpj;J tUfpd;w gq;Fjhuu;fshfpa 

cq;fSf;Fk; vdJ ed;wpiaj; njuptpj;Jf; nfhs;s 

tpUk;GfpNwd;.

2021 Mk; Mz;bYk; rthyhd fhyfl;lq;fs; njhlUk; 

vd;W ehq;fs; vjpu;ghu;f;fpNwhk;. vt;thwhapDk;> 

ehq;fs; vq;fs; Efu;Nthu;> r%fq;fs; kw;Wk; kf;fspd; 

NjitfSf;F Vw;wthW nefpo;Tg;Nghf;Fld; kPz;nlOfpd;w 

jpwd; nfhz;ltu;fs; kw;Wk; Gj;jhf;Fdu;fs; vd;gij 

ep&gpj;Js;Nshk;. Gj;jhf;fq;fis tpiuTgLj;Jtjd; 

%yKk;> Gjpa jsq;fisAk; njhopy;El;gq;fisAk; 

jOtp> vq;fs; Efu;Nthiu kfpo;tpf;f nghUj;jkhd 

jahupg;Gfs; kw;Wk; Nritfis toq;Ftjd; %yKk; 

vjpu;fhyj;jpw;fhd Maj;jq;fis ehq;fs; nra;fpNwhk;. 

fhyepiy khw;wj;ij rkhspf;f vq;fs; eltbf;iffis 

Jupjg;gLj;jp> Ngz;jfikapy; ehq;fs; jiyikg; gq;fpid 

Vw;Ws;Nshk;. ,e;j tplaj;jpy; gy Kd;Ndw;wq;fSld; 2021 

xU cw;rhfkhd Mz;lhf mikAk;. 

rKjhaj;jpw;F cz;ikahd gq;fspg;ig toq;FtNjhL> 

ed;ikf;fhd rf;jpahf nray;gLk; mNj Ntisapy;> ehk; 

njhlu;e;Jk; tpw;gid kw;Wk; ,yhg tsu;r;rpia ntspg;gLj;j 

KbAk; vd;W ehd; jplkhf ek;GfpNwd;.

/Ngg;up]; fhtypd;

Kfhikj;Jtg; gzpg;ghsu;

ne];Ny yq;fh gPvy;rP

18 ngg;utup 2021
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Suresh Narayanan
is the Head of Nestlé in South Asia, which includes India, 
Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Nepal, Bhutan and Maldives. 
He was appointed as a Non- Executive Director and 
Chairman to the Board of Nestlé Lanka PLC on 16 
October 2015.

Suresh joined Nestlé in 1999 as Executive Vice 
President–Sales in India. He moved to Nestlé Indochina 
(which includes Thailand, Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos 
and Vietnam) in 2003 as Executive Director for Sales, 
Marketing and Food-Services for the region. Two years 
later, he returned to Nestlé India as Head of Sales. In 
2008, he was appointed Managing Director of Nestlé, 
Singapore. He was awarded the Medal of Commendation 
by the Government of Singapore, for sustaining growth 
amidst economic downturn in the country. In 2010 he 
was appointed Head of NEAR (Northeast Africa Region) 
for Nestlé. His last post before moving to his current 
role in the South Asian Region was Chairman and CEO 
of Nestlé Philippines. He holds a Master’s Degree 
in Economics from the Delhi School of Economics 
and a Diploma from the IMD Executive Development 
programme in Switzerland. He has also participated in 
Nestlé’s Leadership Programme at the London Business 
School. Suresh has over 30 years of experience in the 
FMCG industry. In addition to Nestlé, his vast career 
includes a number of senior management positions in 
Unilever and Colgate Palmolive.

Fabrice Cavallin
is the Managing Director of Nestlé Lanka PLC, effective 
1 January 2019. He is responsible for the management 
of Nestlé’s operations both in Sri Lanka and Maldives. 
Fabrice started his career with Nestlé in Switzerland in 
1995 as an International Auditor. 

His international career with Nestlé includes several 
successful General Management roles for Nestlé’s 
bottled water and nutrition businesses across the USA, 
Argentina, Mexico, Germany, Spain and India. Prior to 
joining Nestlé Lanka, Fabrice was the Regional Business 
Head for Nestlé’s Infant Nutrition business in South Asia. 
He was able to deliver outstanding results for the nutrition 
business in the South Asia Region, achieving strong 
growth in a highly competitive environment.

Over his 25 years in the company, Fabrice has earned a 
reputation for energy, pragmatism, and a determination to 
win; setting new standards and creating opportunities to 
succeed in difficult market environments across varying 
geographies. He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics 
from the renowned University of St. Gallen in Switzerland.

Gurcharan Grover
is the Director - Finance & Control of Nestlé Lanka PLC, 
effective 1 January 2018. He is a gold medalist Chartered 
Accountant and also a Cost Accountant, with a rich 
and varied experience in the field of Auditing, Costing, 
Accounting & Reporting, Controlling, and Business 
Partnering across India, Africa (Ghana) and Switzerland.

Gurcharan’s career at Nestlé spans over 24 years. He 
joined Nestlé India in 1996 and was involved in a number 
of assignments in Finance & Control before moving to 
Ghana as Factory Controller in 2006. In early 2009, he 
moved to Nestlé’s headquarters in Switzerland as Market 
Reporting Controller for the Nestlé group. He went on 
to become a Reporting Specialist. He returned to Nestlé 
India in 2012 as Head of Accounting and Reporting for 
the South Asian Region. He took over as Sales Controller 
for Nestlé India in 2014 before joining Nestlé Lanka in 
2018.

At Nestlé Lanka, Gurcharan provides overall leadership 
to the Finance & Control and Information Technology 
functions, and supports cross-functional teams to deliver 
business results for the company.

David Steven McDaniel
is the Director - Finance & Control and Chief Financial 
Officer of Nestlé India Limited. He was appointed as a 
Non-Executive Director of Nestlé Lanka PLC effective 1 
March 2020. He succeeds Shobinder Duggal, who has 
taken up retirement after 33 years with the Nestlé Group.

David is a Chartered Management Accountant. He has 
over 23 years of rich experience in the Finance & Control 
division, and has held senior management positions in 
various countries during his career with the Nestlé Group.

Prior to taking on his current position, David was the 
Chief Financial Officer of Nestlé UK & Ireland for four 
years. He has held a number of roles in Asia, including 
Division Director - Finance & Control for Nestlé Korea, 
Head of Finance & Control in Nestlé Indochina, and a 
number of other positions in Nestlé China. David was 
also Head of Financial Services for the Nestlé Global 
Business Services Organization at the company's global 
headquarters in Switzerland.

Shobinder Duggal
was a Non-Executive Director of Nestlé Lanka PLC 
from 1 January 2014. He was also Director – Finance & 
Control and Chief Financial Officer of Nestlé India Limited, 
responsible for the financial management of Nestlé’s 
business operations in South Asia, as well as Chairman 
of the Risk Management Committee and member of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Nestlé India 
Limited.

He held positions of increasingly broader importance in 
Finance & Control across geographies and functional 
streams. After diverse experience and exposure, 
Shobinder handled various responsibilities for Nestlé 
India, including Vice President – Corporate Control 
and Head of Internal Audit, in addition to undertaking 
important assignments at the Nestlé Group Headquarters 
in Switzerland. He is an Economics (Hons.) Graduate 
from St. Stephens College, Delhi University, as well as 
a Chartered Accountant, and has received his Executive 
Education from the prestigious IMD Business School 
in Switzerland. Shobinder Duggal took a well-deserved 
retirement effective 29 February 2020, after a successful 
career spanning over 33 years with the Nestlé group.

Ranjan Seevaratnam 
is an Independent Non- Executive Director since 2007, 
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Related 
Party Transactions Review Committee.

He is well versed and proficient in fiscal matters and 
has enjoyed a long, distinguished tenure as a former 
Partner of KPMG. He is a fellow member of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He 
currently serves as a Non-Executive Director on the 
Boards of prominent local companies across a range of 
industries; including agriculture, tea, consumer goods, 
construction, engineering, rubber, transportation and 
active carbon.

Mahen Dayananda
is an Independent Non- Executive Director since 2007, 
and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

An expert on economic issues, Mahen is a former 
Chairman of the Sri Lanka Business Development 
Centre, Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, Monetary Policy 
Consultative Committee of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 
and Colombo Tea Traders’ Association. He also chairs 
several organisations such as Total Tea Concepts (Pvt) Ltd 
and Indo Asia Teas (Pvt) Ltd. Mahen is currently a Non- 
Executive Director of Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC and 
Bukit Darah PLC, and was the Resident Representative 
in Sri Lanka of Gover Horowitz & Blunt Ltd (UK). He was 
also the Honorary Consul for the Republic of Benin in Sri 
Lanka, and the immediate Past President of the Sri Lanka 
– Japan Business Council.

Dian Gomes
is an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect 
from 17 March 2017. He commenced his career at 
KPMG in 1977 and was the General Manager of the May 
Corporation in Sri Lanka prior to embarking on his over 
25-year career in the apparel industry.

He is a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants (UK), the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants (UK) and Certified 
Practicing Accountants (Australia). He received his 
Executive Education at Wharton, Ashbridge and Harvard 
Business Schools and was the President of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants (UK), Sri Lanka 
Division, in 2001/2002. He is also the Honorary Consul of 
Georgia in Sri Lanka.

Dian currently serves as the Chairman and Director of 
Urban Built (Pvt) Ltd, Gandhara Crafts and Artifacts (Pvt) 
Ltd, Villa Republic (Pvt) Ltd, Westgate Apparel (Pvt) Ltd, 
and Westgate International (Pvt) Ltd. He is the former 
Chairman of Hela Clothing (Pvt) Ltd., former Managing 
Director/CEO of MAS Intimates (Pvt) Ltd, and Group 
Director of MAS Holdings Ltd.

His versatile interests saw him take over as President of 
the Boxing Association of Sri Lanka from 2004- 2009 and 
2017 - 2020. He is also part of the Executive Committee 
of the International Boxing Association (AIBA).

Dian is a member of the Pubic Services Commission of 
Sri Lanka. He was also conferred the national title of “Sri 
Lanka Sikhamani” by the President of Sri Lanka in August 
2019.

Board of  
Directors' Profiles



22 Annual Report 2020Nestlé Lanka PLC 23

Management Team

Fabrice Cavallin
Managing Director

Gurcharan Grover
Finance & Control 

Thomas Mueller
Technical

Jagath Wedage
Sales

Makshoodh Meerasaibu
Food, Coffee

Keerthi Pathiraja
Legal

Radhini de Costa
Communications

Vivek Upadhyaya
Customer & Consumer Insights

We come together as a diverse team to challenge the status quo 
and cultivate new ideas that push boundaries. No other food 
and beverage company has the global resources and local 
know-how to make positive impact at the scale and pace of 
Nestlé. We aim to continuously improve, taking on commitments 
that ensure that we enhance quality of life for everyone.
Consumer expectations, competition, trade landscapes and society are all evolving at 
an unprecedented pace. Our company must respond to deliver good food in ever more 
relevant, accessible and sustainable ways. Every choice we make reflects our commitment 
to deliver Good food, Good life. 'Good' is about holding ourselves to high standards and 
always striving to be better. 

Bandula Egodage
Corporate & Regulatory 
Affairs

Enoca Sirimanne
Human Resources

Ruwan Welikala
Dairy

Roshan Perera
Nestlé Professional

Panchadcharam 
Sathiyenthra
Supply Chain

Tharinda Jayasundera
Nestlé Nutrition

Mohamed Ali
Milo
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Upholding the highest quality and 
food safety standards
Quality and safety for our consumers and our 
employees have always been our top priority, 
and this has never been more important than 
in the new reality we find ourselves in today. 
This applies to our entire portfolio, from 
foods and beverages to all our systems and 
services. We conduct no less than 900,000 
quality checks a year from farm to table and 
implement stringent best-in-class food safety 
and hygiene practices in our facility, for our 
safety and yours.  

Good for my 
family
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Nestlé Healthy Kids e-learning 
Programme
With close to 4.5 million Sri Lankan school 
children at home due to COVID-19, we 
launched Sri Lanka’s first official ‘Nutrition 
and Wellness’ (Poshanayai Suwadiviyai) 
e-learning programme with the Ministry 
of Education. It is an an e-learning version 
of our long-running Nestlé Healthy Kids 
programme, and aims to help parents 
teach their kids about nutrition, health, 
food safety and hygiene during this time. 
Those scoring above 60% receive an official 
certificate from the Ministry of Education. 

Good for my 
family
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Nestlé Family Club
We launched the Nestlé Family Club 
www.nestlefamilyclub.lk, our first 
corporate loyalty programme, to help 
Sri Lankans live healthier and support 
their physical and mental wellbeing in 
these unprecedented times. In addition 
to offering advice on nutrition, diet and 
staying fit, it also provides tips and 
support to help take care of the family. 

Good for my 
family
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Corporate Governance

Nestlé Lanka complies 
with highest standards of 
best practices of Corporate 
Governance. The Board has 
adopted the Nestlé Corporate 
Business Principles, which 
guide the conduct of Nestlé 
employees in their dealings 
with customers, suppliers and 
other stakeholders. It is one 
of the key objectives of the 
Company to maintain high 
standards of integrity in its 
business.
Members of the Board 
The Board of Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC comprises 
seven Directors of whom two are Executive Directors, 
three are Independent Non-Executive Directors and two 
are Non- Executive Directors, including the Chairman 
of the Board. The Managing Director of the Company 
also acts as the Chief executive Officer, and the Board 
has entrusted the Managing Director to manage all the 
affairs of the Company. The Board of Directors act on a 
fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence and 
care and in the best interest of the Company. They are 
well aware of the Company’s activities and give direction 
for long-term strategy; seeking and contributing views 
and opinions on strategic options proposed by the senior 
management of the Company. The Directors also ensure 
that the Company is fully compliant with the provisions 
of the Companies Act No. 7 of2007 and the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE). The Directors’ 
interest / involvement in the affairs of the Company 

are explained on pages 41 to 43 and the Corporate 
Governance Compliance Table is shown on pages 32 to 
33.

Board Independence
All Directors make a formal declaration of all their 
interests on an annual basis. Based on the declarations 
made annually by each of the Non-Executive 
Directors, in accordance with the requirements set 
out in the Listing Rules of the CSE, three out of five 
Non- Executive Directors, namely Mahen Dayananda, 
Ranjan Seevaratnam and Dian Gomes are considered 
independent. Notwithstanding that Mahen Dayananda 
and Ranjan Seevaratnam have completed more than nine 
consecutive years as Directors of the Board, The Board 
considers Mahen Dayananda and Ranjan Seevaratnam as 
‘Independent’ having considered their unbiased approach 
to the matters of the Board. Further it was noted that they 
are independent of day to day management and free from 
any business or other relationships which could materially 
interfere with the exercise of independent judgement, 
other than those that are disclosed in this report. The 
Board considers that the other two out of the five Non-
Executive Directors, as Non-Independent.

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is qualified to act as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, and also 
functions as the Legal Advisor to the Company.

Management Committee
The Management Committee is led by the Managing 
Director, to which the Board has entrusted certain 
responsibilities, including the day to day running of the 
business. Every member of the Management Committee 
is responsible for operations and the delivery of objectives 
pertaining to his / her particular division.

Compliance Committee
As part of robust governance protocols and procedures in 
the market, the Company has established a Compliance 
Committee. The purpose of the Compliance Committee 
is to assist the management in fulfilling its responsibilities 
to oversee the Company’s compliance with respect to 
legal and regulatory requirements and Nestlé’s internal 
standards. The Compliance Committee is comprised 
of divisional heads such as Finance & Control, Human 
Resources, Corporate Affairs and, Technical, and 
is chaired by the Managing Director. The Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

The main objectives of the Compliance Committee are as 
follows;

	 To sustain a ‘compliance’ culture that enables good 
business decisions. 

	 To ensure that the Company is compliant with local 
legislations, Nestlé Corporate Business Principles, 
Nestlé Code of Business Conduct, Nestlé Insider 
Trading Policy and other policies as issued by the 
Nestlé Group from time to time.

	 To ensure independence of processes in addressing 
any compliance related matter.

	 To devise a proper system to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and internal 
controls, and that such systems are operating 
effectively.

	 To perform any other duties as directed by the Board, 
Audit Committee or Management Committee.

The Committee meets quarterly and the Chairman of the 
Committee periodically reports to the Board if necessary 
on the status of compliance.

Auditors
At the thirty ninth Annual General Meeting of Nestlé 
Lanka PLC, held on 21 July 2020, the shareholders 
appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s Auditors and 
authorised the Directors to fix their remuneration. The 
independent Auditors conducted the annual audit for 
the year ended 31 December 2020 in order to form an 
opinion on the financial statements. Their report on the 
financial statements is given on pages 53 to 55. 

Audit, Remuneration and Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee
The Audit Committee Report on pages 35 and 36, the 
Remuneration Committee Report on page 37 and Related 
Party Transactions Review Committee Report on pages 
38 to 39 detail the functions and responsibilities of the 
respective Board Sub-Committees.

Internal Controls
In addition to the statutory requirements for an external 
audit, Nestlé Lanka PLC complies with best practices 
as laid down by the Nestlé Group. To ensure such 
conformity, the Company conducts regular reviews and 
is also monitored by multi-tiered audits conducted by the 
Group’s international and regional Auditors from time to 
time, as deemed appropriate.

Internal audits are carried out regularly by the Company’s 
Internal Auditors, who report directly to the Director 
- Finance & Control whilst also being accountable to 
the Managing Director and the Audit Committee of the 
Company.

Risk Management
Nestlé has always recognized its obligation towards the 
occupational health and safety of its employees, as well 
as of community members directly or indirectly involved 
in the Company’s operations. Equally important is the 
Company’s obligation to protect Shareholders’ interests, 
by managing risks to minimize potential financial losses. 
In order to manage these risks, the Company has 
implemented the following procedures:

	 Strict compliance with local laws.

	 Clear accountability and active management 
leadership.

	 Behavioural-based safety management.

	 Credible market and site safety organisation.

	 Appropriate, systematic hazard assessments.

	 Technical standards for design, construction, 
operation and maintenance.

	 Emergency and contingency planning to minimise the 
impact of incidents.

	 Security management to protect products and assets.

Employee Relations
One of our greatest assets is our employees. It is critical 
to our success to attract, retain, develop and motivate 
the best people with the right capabilities at all levels 
of our operations. We review our employee policies 
regularly and are committed to investing in training and 
development. We also carry out succession planning 
to ensure that the future needs of the business are 
considered and provided for. There are clear processes 
for understanding and responding to employees’ needs 
through Human Resource initiatives, staff surveys and 
regular communication of business developments.

Shareholders
Nestlé Lanka PLC aims to ensure that Shareholders have 
access to relevant, up-to-date and consistent financial 
and non-financial information pertaining to the Company. 
The Annual Report and quarterly financial statements 
provide Shareholders as well as prospective investors 
the required information to assess the Company’s 
performance
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Corporate Governance 
Reporting

Disclosure Regarding the Board of Directors Under the Listing Rules Issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange
Section Subject Applicable Rule Compliance 

Status
Details

7.10.1(a) 
to (c)

Non-Executive 
Directors

Two or at least one third of the total 
number of Directors should be Non-
Executive Directors

Compliant Five out of seven Directors 
are Non-Executive Directors.

7.10.2(a) Independent Directors Two or one third of Non-Executive 
Directors (whichever is higher) 
should be independent

Compliant Three of the five Non-
Executive Directors are 
independent.

7.10.2(b) Independent Directors Each Non-Executive Director 
should submit a declaration of 
independence / non- independence 
in the prescribed format

Compliant The three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, and 
two Non-Executive Directors 
have  submitted to the 
Company declaration in the 
prescribed format.

7.10.3(a) Disclosures relating to 
Directors

Determination of Independent 
Directors and their names should be 
disclosed in the Annual Report

Compliant Please refer page 30 of the 
Annual Report

7.10.3(b) Directors do not 
qualify as independent 
but are specified 
by the Board as 
independent

The qualification not met under 
Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Listing Rules 
and the basis for determining the 
Director to be independent

Compliant Please refer page 30 of the 
Annual Report

7.10.3(c) Brief résumé of each 
Director in the Annual 
Report

A brief resumé of each Director 
should be included in the Annual 
Report, including the area of 
expertise

Compliant Please refer pages 20 and  
21 of the Annual Report

Disclosure Regarding the Remuneration Committee Under the Listing Rules Issued by the  
Colombo Stock Exchange
Section Subject Applicable Rule Compliance  

Status
Details

7.10.5(a) Composition of 
the Remuneration 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-Executive 
Directors, a majority of whom shall 
be independent

Compliant

Please refer page 37 of the 
Annual Report

The Chairman of the Committee 
shall be a Non–Executive Director

Compliant

7.10.5(a) Remuneration 
Committee

A listed company may be permitted 
to have the same Remuneration 
Committee if the parent company is 
also listed

Not 
applicable

The parent company is not 
listed in Sri Lanka. As such 
a separate Remuneration 
Committee has been formed

7.10.5(b) Disclosure of the 
Functions of the 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee 
shall recommend the remuneration 
payable to the Board and Executive 
Officers

Compliant Please refer page 37 of the 
Annual Report

Disclosure Regarding the Remuneration Committee Under the Listing Rules Issued by the  
Colombo Stock Exchange
Section Subject Applicable Rule Compliance  

Status
Details

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report

Names of the Directors in the 
Remuneration Committee

Compliant
Please refer page 37 of the 
Annual ReportA Statement of the Remuneration 

Policy

The aggregate remuneration paid 
to Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors

Compliant Please refer page 89 the 
Annual Report

Disclosure Regarding the Audit Committee Under the Listing Rules Issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange
Section Subject Applicable Rule Compliance 

Status
Details

7.10.6(a) Composition of the 
Audit Committee

Shall comprise Non-Executive 
Directors, a majority of whom shall 
be independent

Compliant

Please refer page 35 of the 
Annual Report

The Chairman of the Committee 
shall be a Non-Executive Director

Compliant

The Chairman or a member should 
be a member of a professional 
accounting body

Compliant

7.10.6(a) 
and (c)

Audit Committee A listed company may be permitted 
to have the same Audit Committee 
if the parent company is also listed

Not 
applicable

The parent company is not 
listed in Sri Lanka. As such, 
a separate Audit Committee 
has been formed

7.10.6(b) Functions of the Audit 
Committee

Should be detailed as per section 
7.10.6(b) of the Listing Rules

Compliant Please refer page 35 of the 
Annual Report

7.10.6(c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report

Names of the Directors in the Audit 
Committee

Compliant

Please refer page 35 of the 
Annual Report

The basis of determination of the 
Auditor’s independence

Compliant

A report of the Audit Committee as 
per section 7.10.6(c) of the Listing 
Rules

Compliant
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Disclosures Regarding the Related Party Transactions Review Committee Under the Listing Rules Issued by the 
Colombo Stock Exchange
Section Subject Applicable Rule Compliance 

Status
Details

9 Related Party 
Transactions Review 
Committee

The Company shall have a 
Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee

Compliant Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee duly 
appointed as per CSE Listing 
Rules

9.2.2 Composition of 
the Related Party 
Transaction Review 
Committee

Shall comprise a combination 
of Non- Executive Directors, 
Independent Non- Executive 
Directors and Executive Directors

Compliant

The Chairman of Committee should 
be an Independent Non–Executive 
Director

Compliant Please refer page 38 of the 
Annual Report

Corporate Governance 
Reporting

Report of the Audit 
Committee
The Committee, appointed by the Board of Directors, 
comprises of four members; namely Ranjan Seevaratnam, 
Mahen Dayananda and Dian Gomes who are Non-
Executive Independent Directors, and David Steven 
McDaniel who is a Non-Executive Director. The 
Committee is chaired by Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is a 
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales, and a former Partner of KPMG. Dian 
Gomes and David Steven McDaniel are also qualified 
Chartered Management Accountants. 

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee 
has unrestricted access to the Company’s management, 
books and records. The Committee supports the Board 
of Directors in its supervision of financial controls through 
a direct link to Ernst & Young (External Auditors), Nestlé 
Lanka Internal Auditors and the Nestlé Group Auditors. 
The Nestlé Group Auditors are a world-class audit 
department. They provide value-added assistance to top 
management in Nestlé's international headquarters and 
across the markets.

The Company’s Internal Audit team regularly updates the 
Committee on the progress of internal audits carried out 
during the relevant period.

The Audit Committee’s main duties include the following:

	 Assisting the Board of Directors in reviewing the 
financial statements, to ensure that the financial 
reporting process is in compliance with the required 
standards.

	 Reporting to the Board on the quality and acceptability 
of accounting policies and practices.

	 Reviewing the Company’s internal controls, risk 
management process, and process for monitoring 
compliance with laws and regulations.

	 Assessing the independence and performance of the 
Company’s external Auditors.

	 Making recommendations to the Board pertaining 
to the appointment, reappointment and removal of 
external Auditors.

	 Approving the remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the external Auditors.

Page 20 of this Annual Report displays the profiles of the 
members of the Audit Committee. The members of the 
Audit Committee have the requisite financial knowledge 
and business acumen to carry out their roles effectively, 
and discuss matters that come within their purview 
independently and professionally. 

The Committee met four times during the year under review, as recorded in the table. 

Date of the meeting Attendance Yes () / No () Attendance by invitation 
Yes () / No ()

Ranjan 
Seevaratnam

Mahen 
Dayananda

Dian 
Gomes

David 
Steven 
McDaniel
(Appointed w.e.f. 

01.03.2020)

Shobinder 
Duggal
(Resigned w.e.f.  

29.02.2020)

 Managing 
Director

Director - 
Finance & 
Control

28.02.2020       

09.06.2020       

11.08.2020       

10.11.2020       
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The Managing Director and Director-Finance & Control 
of the Company attended Audit Committee Meetings 
by invitation and the Company Secretary acted as 
the Secretary to the Committee. Internal and external 
Auditors were invited to be present where appropriate, at 
the deliberation of the Committee.

Having evaluated the prevailing processes and systems, 
the Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal controls 
of the Company provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the financial reporting, and that the requirements under 
the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange have 
been met.

KPMG informed the Company that they would not be 
available for reappointment as Auditors at the Annual 
General Meeting 2020. On the recommendations made 
by the Committee, the Board of Directors proposed to 
Shareholders to appoint Ernst & Young as Auditors for the 
statutory audit for the year ending 31 December 2020. At 
the Virtual Annual General Meeting held on 21 July 2020, 
the shareholders approved the appointment of Ernst & 
Young as External Auditors of the Company.

The External Auditors’ Letter of Engagement, including 
the scope of the audit, was reviewed and discussed 
by the Committee with the External Auditors and 
management prior to the commencement of the audit. 
The External Auditors kept the Committee advised on 
an on-going basis regarding matters of significance that 
were pending resolution. The Committee is satisfied 
that the independence of the External Auditors have not 
been impaired by any event or service that gives rise to 
a conflict of interest. Due consideration has been given 
to the nature of the services provided by the Auditors 
and the level of audit and non-audit fees received by 
the Auditors from the Company. The Committee also 
reviewed the arrangements made by the Auditors to 
maintain their independence and confirmation has been 
received from the Auditors of their compliance with the 

independence guidance given in the Code of Ethics of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The 
Audit Committee has assessed, evaluated and reviewed 
the effectiveness of the independent performance of the 
external Auditors Ernst & Young.

Shobinder Duggal resigned from the Audit Committee 
with effect from 29 February 2020 subsequent to his 
resignation from the Board of Nestlé Lanka PLC and 
David Steven McDaniel was appointed as member to the 
Audit Committee with effect from 01 March 2020.

Ranjan Seevaratnam
Chairman, Audit Committee

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021

Report of the Audit 
Committee

Report of the Remuneration 
Committee
The Remuneration Committee was appointed by the 
Board of Directors with the aim of recommending the 
remuneration payable to the Executive Directors and 
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Committee 
comprises of three Non-Executive Directors; namely 
Mahen Dayananda and Ranjan Seevaratnam, who are 
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and Suresh 
Narayanan, who is a Non-Executive Director. Mahen 
Dayananda is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Committee was established and assigned with 
the task of evaluating and assessing the remuneration 
payable to the Executive Directors and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company. The Remuneration Policy of the 
Company is to be consistent and aligned with market 
reality to attract and retain qualified and competent 
personnel. The Committee evaluated the Executive 
Directors’ remuneration and recommended the 
remuneration payable.

The Committee is assisted by the Director-Finance 
& Control and Vice President-Human Resources in 
providing relevant information. The remuneration 
packages are linked to individual performances and are 
aligned with the Company’s remuneration policy. The 
Committee makes every attempt to maintain the policy 
whilst attracting and retaining talent.

The members of the Committee meet as and when 
necessary. During the year under review, the Committee 
met on 11 November 2020 with all members being 
present. The Managing Director of the Company, 
together with the Director-Finance & Control, attended 
the said meeting by invitation. The Company Secretary 
attended this meeting in the capacity of Secretary to the 
Committee.

Mahen Dayananda
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021
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Report of the Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee
The Related Party Transactions Review Committee, 
appointed by the Board of Directors, comprises three 
members; namely Ranjan Seevaratnam and Mahen 
Dayananda, who are Non-Executive Independent 
Directors, and Gurcharan Grover, Director-Finance & 
Control of the Company. The Committee is chaired by 
Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is a fellow member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, 
and a former partner of KPMG. In addition, the Managing 
Director and the Head of Financial Accounting & 
Reporting attend meetings by invitation and the Company 
Secretary serves as the Secretary of the Committee.

The objectives of the Committee are to ensure that the 
interests of Shareholders are taken into account by the 
Company when entering into Related Party Transactions, 
and to comply with the provisions of the Listing Rules’ 
terms pertaining to Related Party Transactions, to 
prevent Directors, Chief Executive Officers or substantial 
Shareholders from taking advantage of their positions.

The functions of the Committee, in terms of Section 9 
of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange and 
the Code on Related Party Transactions, issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (Code), 
are as follows:

	 Review all proposed Related Party Transactions 
(except for exempted transactions).

	 Direct the transactions for Board approval / 
Shareholder approval as appropriate.

	 Obtain updates on previously reviewed Related Party 
Transactions from senior management, and approve 
any material changes.

	 Establish guidelines for senior management to follow 
in its ongoing dealings with Related Parties.

	 Review and assess, on an annual basis, the 
transactions for compliance with Committee 
guidelines.

The Committee held four meetings during the financial year. Information on the attendance of these meetings by the 
members of the Committee is given below:

Date of the meeting Attendance Yes () / No () Attendance by invitation  
Yes () / No ()

Ranjan
Seevaratnam

Mahen
Dayananda

Gurcharan 
Grover

Managing 
Director

Head of 
Financial 
Accounting

28.02.2020     

09.06.2020     

11.08.2020     

10.11.2020     

Committee recommendations were communicated by the 
Chairman of the Committee to the Board of Directors at 
Board Meetings every quarter.

In every Committee meeting, the Management presented 
the summary of Related Party Transactions incurred 
during the period under review, along with the basis of 
their pricing together with material changes in pricing if 
any.

The Committee confirmed that all the Recurrent and 
Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions, incurred 
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and estimated 
transactions for year 2021, were at arm’s length and in 

compliance with rules and regulations. The Committee 
further confirmed that all the Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions incurred during the year ended 31 
December 2020 and estimated transactions for year 
2021 were of a revenue or trading nature, which were 
necessary for day to day operations of the Company, 
where terms were not favourable to respective related 
parties. Accordingly the Committee recommended to 
the Board to resolve at the meeting held on 18 February 
2021, that all the Recurrent Related Party Transactions 
incurred during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 
estimated transactions for year 2021, shall not fall within 
the ambit of Related Party Transactions Rules (Section 9 

of the listing rules) as per provisions of Section 9.5(a) of 
the listing rules, and the Board approved the same at their 
meeting held on 18 February 2021.

The Committee is always free to seek external 
professional advice on matters within their purview when 
necessary.

Details of Related Party Transactions are disclosed in the 
Annual Report of the Board of Directors, under note 25 of 
the financial statements in accordance with the provision 
of Rule 9.3.2 of the listing rules.

Ranjan Seevaratnam
Chairman, Related Party Transactions Review Committee

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021
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Annual Report of the Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company
The Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC take pleasure in 
presenting to the Shareholders the Annual Report 
together with the audited financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2020 and the Auditors’ Report 
thereon.

Board of Directors
Suresh Narayanan, Fabrice Cavallin, Gurcharan Grover, 
Shobinder Duggal (resigned w.e.f. 29.02.2020) David 
Steven McDaniel (appointed w.e.f. 01.03.2020), Mahen 
Dayananda, Ranjan Seevaratnam and Dian Gomes are the 
Directors of the Company.

Shobinder Duggal resigned from the Board as Non-
Executive Director with effect from 29 February 2020 and 
David Steven McDaniel was appointed as Non-Executive 
Director to the Board with effect from 01 March 2020, 
and re-elected by the shareholders in terms of Article 
64 of the Articles of Association of the Company at the 
preceding Annual General Meeting. 

In terms of Article 56, 57 and 58 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Dian Gomes will retire by 
rotation and being eligible, offer himself for re-election. 
Ranjan Seevaratnam and Mahen Dayananda will retire 
pursuant to Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007, as they attained the age of 70 years on 24 
September 2013 and 19 June 2016 respectively.

Resolutions, in terms of Section 211, to the effect that 
the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of 
the Companies Act shall not be applicable to Ranjan 
Seevaratnam and Mahen Dayananda for re-election, will 
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, 
in order to re-elect Ranjan Seevaratnam and Mahen 
Dayananda.

Directors' Remuneration is given under Note 25.2 of the 
financial statement.

Review for the Year
The Chairman’s Message and Managing Director’s 
Review on pages xx and xx highlight the Company’s 
affairs and the performance of the period under review.

Results and Dividends
The profit achieved by the Company on a Revenue of 
Rs. 37.9 billion, after provisioning for all known liabilities 
and depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, but 
before taxation, amounts to Rs 4.3 billion. After deducting 
a sum of Rs. 1.3 billion as income tax, the net profit was 
Rs 2.9 billion. 

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the year is given on page 56.

The Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC declared an interim 
dividend of Rs. 35.00 per share which will be paid to 
the Shareholders of the Company on 04 March 2021 
via bank transfers and on 23 March 2021 via cheques. 
The Directors also were pleased to recommend a final 
dividend of Rs. 20.00 per share, payable on 15 June 
2021 via bank transfer and 02 July 20201 via cheques, 
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 
upcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held 
on 10 June 2021.

Stated Capital
The stated capital of the Company as at 31 December 
2020 amounts to Rs. 537,254,630.

Activity
Nestlé prides itself on local manufacturing, using 
mainly local ingredients at its state-of-the-art factory in 
Kurunegala. Its portfolio comprises some of the country’s 
best loved brands, from global icons like Milo and Maggi 
to local favourites like Nestomalt, all which benefit from 
Nestlé's R&D network, global expertise in nutrition, and 
stringent quality control procedures.

The company continued to support the local community 
in 2020 by paying out Rs. 2.4 billion to 14,000 local 
dairy farmers for fresh milk and Rs. 4.5 billion to the 
local coconut industry for purchase of fresh coconuts. 
With close to 4.5 million Sri Lankan school children at 
home, the company launched an e-learning version of its 
long-running Nestlé Healthy Kids programme, hosted on 
the Ministry of Education’s website. It is Sri Lanka’s first 
official ‘Nutrition and Wellness’ (Poshanayai Suwadiviyai) 
e-learning programme. 14,500 people were also given 
free health checks and nutritional counselling through its 
Choose Wellness, Choose Nestlé programmes. To help 
address the deficiencies of certain nutrients in local diets, 
Nestlé delivered 923 million servings of micronutrient 
enriched food and beverages in 2020. Nestlé also 
continued to help young people learn the skills they need 
to be successful in the workplace through its Nestlé 
Needs YOUth programme, reaching over 16,000 young 
people. 

The company also launched the Nestlé Family Club www.
nestlefamilyclub.lk, its first corporate loyalty programme, 
to help Sri Lankans live healthier and support their 
physical and mental wellbeing in these unprecedented 
times. Two innovation challenges were also launched 

with Hatch, Sri Lanka’s largest incubator for start-ups, and with four universities – University of Kelaniya, University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura, University of Colombo and University of Moratuwa – calling for open innovation ideas from students, 
start-ups and entrepreneurs for green initiatives and products made with local ingredients, which meet local nutritional 
needs. The aim of these projects is to refresh the company’s local insight and innovation process, and encourage 
innovative thinking. 

The company also made more than 80% of its packaging by weight recyclable, and has completely stopped the use 
of plastic items in its promotions, eliminating about 250 MT of plastic a year. It launched its first ever waste collection 
programme with the Central Environmental Authority and Ministry of Education, to manage waste and create awareness 
about responsible disposal in schools, reaching 50,000 students. Between 2010 and 2020, the company has reduced its 
energy use by 16%, water use by 11%, and greenhouse gas emissions by 8%. 

Last but not least, it continued to be recognized as a force for good with a number of awards and recognitions, 
mentioned on page 9. 

Directors’ Interest
a)  In Contracts

Details of Directors’ interest in contracts of the Company as at 31 December 2020 are disclosed below. The Directors do 
not have direct or indirect interest or proposed contracts other than those disclosed hereunder. 

The Directors have disclosed all material interests in contracts (if any) involving the Company and have refrained from 
participating when decisions were taken.

Suresh Narayanan - Transactions with affiliates or related parties. 
Disclosed in notes 16, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

Fabrice Cavallin - Transactions with affiliates or related parties.
Disclosed in notes 16, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

Gurcharan Grover - Transactions with affiliates or related parties.
Disclosed in notes 16, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

David Steven McDaniel

(appointed w.e.f. 01.03.2020)

- Appointed with effect from 01 March 2020. Transactions with affiliates or related 
parties Disclosed in notes 16, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

Shobinder Duggal

(resigned w.e.f. 29.02.2020)

- Transactions with affiliates or related parties.
Disclosed in notes 16, 24 and 25 to the financial statements.

Mahen Dayananda    -    No transaction with affiliates

Directorships and dealings with other Companies:

Company Position Transactions 
(procurement) during 

the year 2020 (Rs.’000s)

Balance (due to) / 
from as at 31.12.2020 

(Rs.’000s)
Total Tea Concepts (Private) Ltd Chairman No Nil

Indo Asia Teas (Pvt) Ltd Chairman No Nil

Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC Director No Nil

Bukit Darah PLC Director No Nil

Sri Lanka – Japan Business Council  
(retired w.e.f. 30.09.2020)

President No Nil
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Ranjan Seevaratnam    -    No transaction with affiliates

Directorships and dealings with other Companies

Company Position Transaction 
(procurement) 

During the year 2020 
(Rs.’000s)

Balance (due 
to) / from as 

at 31.12.2020 
(Rs.’000s)

Acme Printing & Packaging Non-Executive Director No Nil

Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC  
(retired w.e.f. 30.06.2020)

Non-Executive Director 22,831 9,815

Lanka Aluminium Industries PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Tokyo Cement Lanka PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

The Colombo Fort Land & Investments PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

The Colombo Fort Land & Building Co. PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Metecno Lanka (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director 835 835

Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Lankem Ceylon PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

EB Creasy & Company PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Melstacorp PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Omega Line (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Benji Ltd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Sirio Ltd. Non-Executive Director No Nil

Alpha Apparels PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Dian Gomes    -    No transaction with affiliates

Directorships and dealings with other Companies

Company Position Transaction 
(procurement) 

during the year 2020 
(Rs.’000s)

Balance (due 
to) / from as at 

31.12.2020 
(Rs.’000s)

Urban Built (Pvt) Ltd Director/Chairman No Nil

Gandhara Crafts & Artifacts (Pvt) Ltd Director/Chairman No Nil

Villa Republic (Pvt) Ltd Director/Chairman No Nil

Westgate International (Pvt) Ltd Director/Chairman No Nil

Westgate Apparel (Pvt) Ltd  
(retired w.e.f. 11.03.2020)

Director/Chairman No Nil

Gandhara Investments (Pvt) Ltd  
(retired w.e.f. 11.03.2020)

Director/Chairman No Nil

	

b)  In Shares of the Company

Director Shareholding
01.01.2020 31.12.2020

Executive Fabrice Cavallin Nil Nil

Gurcharan Grover Nil Nil

Non-Executive Suresh Narayanan Nil Nil

Shobinder Duggal  
(retired with effect from 28.02.2020)

Nil Nil

David McDaniel  
(appointed with effect from 01.03.2020)

Nil Nil

Independent Non-Executive Mahen Dayananda 1,000 1,000

Ranjan Seevaratnam Nil Nil

Dian Gomes Nil Nil

Board Meetings Attendance

28.02.2020  09.06.2020 11.08.2020 10.11.2020
Suresh Narayanan -Chairman -   

Fabrice Cavallin- Managing Director    

Gurcharan Grover - Director, Finance & Control    

Shobinder Duggal - Director (resigned w.e.f. 29.02.2020)  - - -

David Steven McDaniel (appointed w.e.f. 01.03.2020) -   

Mahen Dayananda- Director    

Ranjan Seevaratnam- Director    

Dian Gomes- Director    

Corporate Governance

The corporate governance practices of the Company are 
set out in detail on page 30.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of property, plant and equipment, additions made 
during the year and depreciation thereof for the year are 
shown in note 12 to the financial statements on page 71.

Auditors
KPMG, Chartered Accountants, have been the 
Company’s Auditors in the past, and informed 
the Company that they would not be available for 
reappointment. The Shareholders of the Company 
appointed Ernst & Young who had been recommended 
by the Board and the Audit Committee as Auditors of the 
Company at the Virtual Annual General Meeting held on 
21 July 2020 for the statutory audit of the year ended 31 
December 2020.

The Auditors’ fees are disclosed in note 7 to the financial 
statements on page 69. As far as the Directors are aware, 
Ernst & Young does not have any relationship / interest 
(other than that of an Auditor) with the Company other 
than those disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements 
on page 69. The Auditors also do not have any interest 
the Company.

Accounting Policies
The Company prepared its annual financial statements 
according to Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS 
/ LKAS). All relevant applicable standards have been 
followed in presenting the financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Annual Report of the Directors on the 
Affairs of the Company
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Directors’ Responsibility for 
Financial Reporting
The Company’s financial statements, presented in 
this report for the financial year ended 31 December 
2020, conform to the requirements of the Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act No. 7 
of 2007. The Directors confirmed that the financial 
statements presented by them give a true and fair view 
of the Company’s activities as at that date. The financial 
information is consistent with that in the financial 
statements.

The Board of Directors has initiated an efficient and 
concise system of internal control. It also includes internal 
checks and internal audits, along with financial and other 
controls required to carry on the business smoothly, 
whilst safeguarding its assets in a secure, practical, 
accurate and reliable manner.

The Company’s Auditors, M/s Ernst & Young, reviewed 
and carry out random checks on the internal controls 
wherever considered necessary, towards endorsing their 
opinion on the financial statements.

The Management’s responsibilities on financial reporting 
is overseen by the Board of Directors/Audit Committee 
through regular review meetings and approving of 
financial information contained in the Annual Report, 
along with the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements.

M/s Ernst & Young are the Auditors appointed by the 
Shareholders. They have audited the financial statements 
submitted by the Board of Directors and have expressed 
their opinion which is published under the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 55.

By Order of the Board.

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

18 February 2021

Disclosures on Related Party Transactions
Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions
There were no Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions 
for which aggregate value exceeded 10% of the equity 
or 5% of the total assets (whichever is lower) of the 
Company as per the audited financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2020, which requires additional 
disclosures in the Annual Report under Colombo Stock 
Exchange listing Rule 9.3.2.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions
Recurrent Related Party Transactions are shown in note 
25 on page 86.

The Management in every meeting of the Related Party 
Transactions Reviews Committee (RPTRC), presented the 
summary of Related Party Transactions incurred during 
the period under review along with the basis of their 
pricing.

Based on the recommendations of the RPTRC, the Board 
of Directors confirmed at their meetings held on 18 
February 2021, that all the Recurrent and Non-Recurrent 
Related Party Transactions incurred during the year ended 
31 December 2020 and estimated transactions for the 
year 2021 were at arm’s length and in compliance with 
the rules and regulations.

Based on the recommendation of the RPTRC, the 
Board resolved at the meeting held on 18 February 
2021 that all the Recurrent Related Party Transactions 
incurred during the year, ended 31 December 2020 
and estimated transactions for the year 2021 , were 
of a revenue or trading nature and were necessary 
for day to day operations of the Company, and terms 
were not favourable to the respective related parties. 
Accordingly, the Board had resolved at the same meeting 
held on 18 February 2021 that all the Recurrent Related 
Party Transactions incurred during the year ended 31 
December 2020, and estimated transactions for the 
year 2021 shall not fall within the ambit of Related Party 
Transactions Rules (Section 9 of the Listing Rules) as per 
provisions of Section 9.5(a) of the Listing Rules.

Material Issues
There were no material issues pertaining to employees 
and industrial relations.

Risk Factors
The Directors of the Company have reviewed the risk 
management structure of the Company and confirmed 
that there are no material risk factors foreseeable.

Conclusion
The Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC wish to convey their 
gratitude and appreciation to the Management and 
staff of the Company for their dedicated and untiring 
cooperation during the year under review.

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

Fabrice Cavallin
Managing Director 

Gurcharan Grover
Director-Finance & Control

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary

18 February 2021

Annual Report of the Directors on the 
Affairs of the Company
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Standing by our community 
For the last 115 years, we have cared 
deeply about the welfare of our farmers, 
suppliers and business partners. Today, 
we’re continuing to stand with them by 
doing whatever is in our power to help 
protect their livelihoods in this pandemic:

We continued to buy milk from our 14,000 
farmers, to ensure their livelihoods are 
protected in these uncertain times. We also 
worked closely with our suppliers to help 
them adapt their processes to work with 
minimal staff, in line with necessary safety 
protocols. To help minimise financial impact 
for our distributor partners, we helped them 
set up mobile stores, as well as business 
models for home delivery and for supply to 
e-commerce sites. 

Good for My 
Community



Nestlé Coconut Plan
We continued to buy coconuts from 6,600 
local farmers, and continued to help train 
and develop 3,000 farmers and outgrowers 
via the Nestlé Coconut Plan.

Good for My 
Community
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Nestlé Needs YOUth – Supporting 
youth employment 
In line with our mission to help Sri Lankan 
youth learn the skills they need to become 
more employable, we scaled up our reach 
in 2020 to conduct our programmes 
virtually and help prepare young graduates 
to face a new virtual workplace. We’re 
proud that we were able to support more 
than 16,000 aspiring young people in this 
manner.  

Good for My 
Community
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Company Highlights

2020 2019
Rs. Mn Rs. Mn

Revenue  37,866  36,355 
Profit before Taxation (PBT)  4,264  3,770 
Profit after Taxation (PAT)  2,947  2,566 
Net Operating Cashflows  6,119  4,485 
Capital Expenditure  434  562 
Shareholders Funds  5,934  5,510 

Key Ratios 2020 2019
PBT as a % of Revenue 11.3% 10.4%
PAT as a % of Revenue 7.8% 7.1%
Effective Tax Rate 30.9% 31.9%
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)  54.85  47.76 
Dividend Per Share (Rs.) 55.00  47.50 
Dividend Payout Ratio 100% 99%
Net Assets Per Share (Rs.)  110.45  102.55 
Return on Capital Employed 56.1% 44.1%
Current Ratio  0.89  0.94 

Market Value Per Share (Rs.) - Highest 1,348.90 1,750.00
	 - Lowest 985.00 1,150.00
	 - Average 1,046.61 1,464.32
	 - Last Traded 1,275.00 1,299.80

Number of Personnel 802 798

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NESTLE LANKA PLC  

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Nestle Lanka 
PLC (“the Company”), which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
of the Company give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and 
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards. 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Other matters
The financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31 December 2019, were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
statements dated 28 February 2020.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, 
including the procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Measurement of revenue as it relates to Trade Spend

As described in Notes 3.1.10 and 5 of the financial 
statements, revenue from the sale of goods is recognized 
when control of the goods has transferred to the customer 
and is measured net of discounts, allowances and 
promotional rebates (collectively ‘trade spend’). 

We deemed the measurement of Revenue to be a key 
audit matter due to the following;

•	 Materiality and complexity in estimating the amount 
of trade spend. The level of trade spend is estimated 
by Management using judgments based on historical 
experience and the specific terms of the agreements/
arrangements with the customers. These estimates 
are subject to uncertainty related to future outcomes, 
including possible changes in buying patterns resulting 
from COVID-19. 

•	 Consideration of Revenue as an important component 
in the determination of measurable financial objectives 
linked to achievement of performance targets and 
management incentive schemes. 

Our audit procedures amongst others included the 
following:

•	 We assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s 
revenue recognition accounting policy, including the 
recognition and classification criteria for trade spend;

•	 We gained an understanding of the types of 
arrangements, processes, and internal controls related 
to trade spend and tested selected internal controls 
related to measuring and accounting for trade spend;

•	 Due to the high reliance on information technology 
in revenue recognition, we tested the integrity of the 
general IT control environment relating to the most 
significant IT systems relevant to revenue recognition 
and tested IT application controls;

•	 For a sample of trade spend arrangements, we 
reconciled key inputs and assumptions used in the 
estimates with relevant internal sources of information 
including contracts with the relevant customers; and 

•	 We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures provided 
in Note 3.1.10 and 5 of the financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements in accordance with the Code of Ethic 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far 
as appears from our examination, proper accounting 
records have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement 
partner responsible for signing this independent auditor’s 
report is 2471. 

18 February 2021
Colombo 

Other information included in the Company’s 2020 
Annual Report
Other information consists of the information included 
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Management is 
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged 
with governance for the financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and 
for such internal control as management determines 

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
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Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December Note 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Revenue 5  37,866,215  36,355,084 
Cost of Sales  (25,647,194)  (24,414,015)
Gross Profit  12,219,021  11,941,069 
Other Operating Expenses 6  (56,654)  (135,961)
Marketing, Selling and Distribution Expenses  (5,129,361)  (5,223,296)
Administrative Expenses  (2,536,100)  (2,492,941)
Profit from Operating Activities 7  4,496,906  4,088,871 
Finance Income  39,170  36,963 
Finance Expenses (272,155) (355,940)
Net Finance Expenses 8  (232,985) (318,977)
Profit Before Taxation  4,263,921  3,769,894 
Income Tax Expense 9 (1,317,038) (1,203,911)
Profit for the Year  2,946,883  2,565,983 
Other Comprehensive Income - Net of Tax
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 19.5  (81,007)  (8,568)
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gain / (Loss) on Cash Flow Hedges (4,210)  3,312 

(85,217) (5,256)
Total Comprehensive Income - Net of Tax  2,861,666  2,560,727 

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
Basic and Diluted, Profit for the year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 10  54.85  47.76 

“Notes to the Financial Statements”, form an integral part of the Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 
deductions.

Statement of 
Financial Position

As at 31 December Note 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 8,396,939 9,012,305 
Capital Work-In-Progress 13 523,837 377,235 
Other Non-Current Assets 15.2 349,027 366,115 

9,269,803 9,755,655 
Current Assets
Inventories 14 4,947,795 3,486,130 
Trade and Other Receivables 15 2,045,837 2,686,713 
Amounts Due from Related Parties 16 440,332 434,476 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 2,507,912 507,585 

9,941,876 7,114,904 
Total Assets 19,211,679 16,870,559 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated Capital 18 537,255 537,255 
Retained Earnings and Reserves 5,396,528 4,972,354 

5,933,783 5,509,609 
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Obligations 19 439,120 368,940 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 20 1,036,119 997,439 
Non-Current Provisions 21 524,089 421,434 
Non-Current Financial Liabilities 22.1 84,460 1,984,029 

2,083,788 3,771,842 
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 23 6,225,296 4,951,225 
Amounts Due to Related Parties 24 1,893,087 805,046 
Current Tax Payable 935,197 652,508 
Dividends Payable 86,772 192,752 
Current Financial Liabilities 22.2 2,053,756 987,577 

11,194,108 7,589,108 
Total Liabilities 13,277,896 11,360,950 
Total Equity and Liabilities 19,211,679 16,870,559 

“Notes to the Financial Statements”, form an integral part of the Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 
deductions.

I certify that these financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007.

Gurcharan Grover
Director - Finance & Control

The Board of Directors is responsible for these financial statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board.

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC
Colombo

	

Fabrice Cavallin	 Ranjan Seevaratnam	
Managing Director	 Director

18 February 2021
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Statement of  
Changes in Equity

Stated 
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Other Equity
Reserves *

Total

Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 2019 537,255 5,034,985 62,916 5,635,156 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the Year - 2,565,983 - 2,565,983 
Other Comprehensive Income - - (5,256) (5,256)

Transactions with Owners of the Company 
Recognised Directly in Equity
Interim Dividend - (1,343,137) - (1,343,137)
Final Dividend - (1,343,137) - (1,343,137)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 537,255 4,914,694 57,660 5,509,609 

Balance as at 1 January 2020 537,255 4,914,694 57,660 5,509,609 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Profit for the Year - 2,946,883 - 2,946,883 
Other Comprehensive Income - - (85,217) (85,217)

Transactions with Owners of the Company 
Recognised Directly in Equity
Unclaimed Dividend Written Back - 114,467 - 114,467 
Interim Dividend - (1,611,764) - (1,611,764)
Final Dividend - (940,195) - (940,195)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 537,255 5,424,085 (27,557) 5,933,783 

* Includes Actuarial Gain / (Loss) and Results of Cash Flow Hedges	

“Notes to the Financial Statements”, form an integral part of the Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 
deductions.

Statement of  
Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December Note 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit Before Taxation 4,263,921 3,769,894 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 12 968,272 1,029,719 
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment 12 - 12,052 
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6 2,205 35,614
Amortisation of Staff Loan 31,731 30,390 
Interest Expense 8 267,297 354,225 
Interest Income 8 (39,170) (36,963)
Movement of Retirement Benefit Obligation (Excluding Actuarial Gain / Loss) 19 (42,330) (33,660)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 5,451,926 5,161,271

Working Capital Changes
Increase in Inventories 14 (1,461,665) (498,286)
Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 15 636,894 645,799 
Decrease / (Increase) in Amount due from Related Parties 16 (5,856) 419,658 
Increase in Trade and Other Payables 23 1,270,820 363,117
Increase / (Decrease) in Amount due to Related Parties 24 1,086,329 (504,906)
Cash Generated from Operations 6,978,448 5,586,653
Income Tax Paid (859,873) (1,101,884)
Net Cash Flows Generated from Operating Activities 6,118,575 4,484,769

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment in Property, Plant and Equipment 12 & 13 (434,371) (561,931)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 840 11,049 
Movement of Other Non-Current Financial Assets 15.2 17,088 (12,231)
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities (416,443) (563,113)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payment of Lease Liabilities 22.4.2 (65,887) (87,018)
Dividends Paid (2,543,473) (2,675,526)
Interest Paid (265,547) (356,934)
Interest Received 7,439 6,573 
Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities (2,867,468) (3,112,905)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,834,664 808,751 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (416,550) (1,225,301)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 17 2,418,114 (416,550)

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position 2,507,912 507,585 
Current Financial Liabilities (Excluding Short Term Lease Liabilities &  
Loan from Related Party)

(89,798) (924,135)

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the statement of cash flows 2,418,114 (416,550)

“Notes to the Financial Statements”, form an integral part of the Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 
deductions.
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1.	 Reporting Entity
	 Nestlé Lanka PLC is a Company incorporated and 

domiciled in Sri Lanka and listed in the Colombo 
Stock Exchange. The registered office and the 
principal place of business is located at 440, T.B. 
Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10. The Company is in 
the food and beverage industry.

	 The parent and holding Company is Nestlé S.A.

1.1.	 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
	 Principal activities of the Company include 

manufacturing, marketing, selling and distribution 
of food and beverage products including the 
export of locally manufactured products and re-
export of such products.

2.	 Basis of Preparation
2.1.	 Statement of Compliance
	 Nestlé Lanka PLC has prepared the financial 

statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (LKAS and SLFRS) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka, the requirements of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007 and provides appropriate disclosures 
as required by the Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange (CSE). These financial statements, 
except for information on cash flows, have been 
prepared following the accrual basis of accounting.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue 
by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on 
18 February 2021.

2.2.	 Basis of Measurement
	 The financial statements are prepared under the 

historical cost basis and applied consistently, with 
no adjustments being made for inflationary factors 
affecting the financial statements except for;

•	 Liability for the Defined Benefit Obligation, 
recognised at the present value of the Defined 
Benefit Obligation, net of plan assets,

•	 Liabilities for the cash-settled share-based 
payment arrangements, measured at fair value,

•	 Derivative financial instruments, measured at 
fair value.

2.3.	 Functional and Presentation Currency
	 The financial statements are presented in Sri 

Lankan rupees, which is the Company’s functional 
currency. All financial information presented in Sri 
Lankan rupees has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

2.4.	 Going Concern
	 In preparing these financial statements, based 

on the available information the management 
has assessed the existing and anticipated 
effects of COVID-19 on the Company and the 
appropriateness of the use of the going concern 
basis.

	 The management has evaluated the resilience of 
its business considering a wide range of factors 
such as current and expected profitability, the 
impact on cash flows, the ability to defer non-
essential capital expenditure and the ability to 
continue providing goods and services. The 
directors are satisfied that the Company has 
adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future, to justify 
adopting the going concern basis in preparing 
these financial statements. 

2.5.	 Use of Estimates and Judgments
	 The preparation of financial statements in 

conformity with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, requires Management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect income and expenses, reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the application of 
policies. The estimates, judgements and 
associated assumptions are based on current 
knowledge, historical experience and various 
other factors that are held to be reasonable under 
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods.

	 Significant judgements, estimates and 
assumptions made by management in preparing 
these financial statements are explained further in 

Notes to the  
Financial Statements

relevant notes including useful lives of Property, 
Plant and Equipment, Impairment of Financial 
and Non-Financial Assets, Employee Benefits, 
Revenue, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities.

	 In determining the above significant management 
judgments, estimates and assumptions the 
probable effect of the COVID-19 pandemic has 
been considered as of the reporting date.

3.	 Accounting Policies
	 The accounting policies set out below have been 

applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements.

3.1.	 Significant Accounting Policies
3.1.1.	 Foreign Currency Transactions
	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 

to Sri Lankan Rupees at the foreign exchange rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities, denominated 
in foreign currencies at the reporting date, are 
translated to Sri Lankan rupees at the foreign 
exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign 
exchange differences arising on translation are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income.

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction.

3.1.2.	 Financial Instruments
a) Financial Assets 

	 Financial assets are initially recognised at fair 
value plus directly attributable transaction costs. 
However, when a financial asset measured at 
fair value through Profit or Loss is recognised, 
the transaction costs are expensed immediately. 
Subsequent remeasurement of financial assets 
is determined by their categorisation, which is 
revisited at each reporting date. The settlement 
date is used for both initial recognition and 
subsequent derecognition of financial assets, as 
these transactions are generally under contracts 
that terms which require delivery within the time 
frame established by regulation or convention in 
the market place (regular-way purchase or sale).

	 The classification of financial assets is generally 
based on the business model in which a financial 
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow 
characteristics. On initial recognition, a financial 
asset is classified and as measured either:

•	 at amortised cost;

•	 at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI); or

•	 at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

	 All financial assets not classified as measured 
at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at 
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured 
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL, if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and 
bank balances and call deposits with a maturity 
period of less than three months. For the purpose 
of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts, 
short-term borrowings and investments of less 
than 3 months maturity.

c) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

	 Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the 
fair value of consideration received, less directly 
attributable transaction costs.

	 Subsequent to the initial measurement, financial 
liabilities are recognised at amortised cost. The 
difference between the initial carrying amount of 
the financial liabilities and their redemption value is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income over the contractual 
terms using the effective interest rate method. This 
category includes trade and other payables, as 
well as other financial liabilities.

	 Financial liabilities at amortised cost are further 
classified as current and non-current depending 
on whether these will fall due within 12 months 
after the reporting date or beyond.
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	 Financial liabilities are derecognised (in full 
or partly) when the obligation specified in the 
contract is either discharged, canceled, expired 
or replaced by a new liability with substantially 
modified terms.

	 The Company’s financial liabilities include Current 
Liabilities and Non-Current Financial Liabilities.

d) �Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge 
Accounting

	 The Company designates and documents the 
use of certain derivatives as hedging instruments 
against changes in fair values of recognised 
assets and liabilities (fair value hedges) and highly 
probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). 
The effectiveness of such hedges is assessed at 
inception and verified at regular intervals.

e) Stated Capital

	 Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as 
equity.

3.1.3.	 Property, Plant and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

	 Cost includes expenditure that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The 
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost 
of materials, direct labour, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to the working 
condition for their intended use, the costs of 
dismantling and removing the items, and restoring 
the site on which they are located.

	 Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment 
comprises major components having different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items of Property, Plant and Equipment.

	 Buildings constructed by the Company on 
leasehold land are capitalised and included under 
the category “Buildings on Leasehold Land.”

	 Borrowing cost incurred during the course 
of construction are capitalised if the assets 
under construction are significant and if their 
construction requires a substantial period to 

complete. The capitalisation rate is determined on 
the basis of the appropriate borrowing rate for the 
period of construction.

b) Derecognition

	 The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant 
and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use. Gains or losses on disposal of an item of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal (net of any 
directly attributable expenses) with the carrying 
amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, and are 
recognised net within “Other Operating Income 
/ Expense” in the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income.

c) Subsequent Expenditure

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

d) Depreciation

	 Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of items of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
Land is not depreciated. The residual values are 
30% on head office buildings and nil for all other 
asset types. The estimated useful lives for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows:

- Buildings on Freehold /  
Leasehold land 25 - 35 years 

- Plant and Machinery 10 - 25 years 

- Tools, Furniture and  
Office Equipment 4 - 5 years 

- Motor Vehicles 5 years

- Information Systems/  
Technology Equipment 3 - 5 years

	 Depreciation on asset begins when it is available 
for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that 
the assets are classified as held for sale, or the 
date that the assets are derecognised.

Notes to the Financial Statements

	 The depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reassessed annually or on an 
earlier date, where any circumstances indicate 
such assessment is required.

e) Capital Work-In-Progress

	 Capital expenses incurred on assets, which are 
not completed as at the date of Statement of 
Financial Position, are shown as Capital Work-In- 
Progress whilst the capital assets which have been 
completed during the year and put to use have 
been transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment.

3.1.4.	 Intangible Assets
	 The Company recognises intangible assets, if it is 

probable that the future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity, and 
cost can be measured reliably.

a) Recognition and Measurement

	 Intangible assets that are acquired by the 
Company, which have finite useful lives are 
recognised and carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.

b) Subsequent Expenditure

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as 
incurred.

c) Amortisation

	 Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful 
lives of intangible assets from the date that they 
are available for use.

d) Retirement and Disposal

	 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use and subsequent disposal. Gains or 
losses on disposal of an item of Intangible Asset 
are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal (net of any directly attributable expenses) 
with the carrying amount, and are recognised 
net within “Other Operating Income / Expense” 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.

3.1.5.	 Impairment & Derecognition
a) Financial Assets

	 At each balance sheet date, the Company 
assesses whether its financial assets are impaired. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income where there is an objective evidence 
of impairment, such as where the issuer is in 
bankruptcy, default or other significant financial 
difficulties. This analysis requires the identification 
of the credit risk associated with the counterparties 
and, considering that the majority of Company’s 
financial assets are trade receivables, integrates 
statistical data reflecting the past experience of 
losses incurred due to default.

	 The Company measures impairment loss 
allowances at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit losses (ECL), except for the 
bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk 
of default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument) has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

	 Impairment loss allowances for financial assets, 
measured at amortised cost are deducted from the 
gross carrying amount of the assets.

	 For trade receivables, the Company applies a 
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, 
the Company does not track changes in credit risk, 
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company 
has established a provision methodology that 
is based on its historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment.

	 Impairment related to trade and other receivables 
are not presented separately in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
but are reported under the heading Marketing, 
Selling and Distribution expenses.

	 Financial assets are derecognised (in full or partly) 
when substantially all the Company’s rights to 
cash flows from the respective assets have expired 
or have been transferred, and the Company has 
neither exposure to substantially all the risks 
inherent in those assets nor entitlement to rewards 
from them.
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b) Non-Financial asset

	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets 
are reviewed at each date of the Statement of 
Financial Position to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

	 For impairment testing, assets are grouped 
together into the smallest group of assets that 
generate cash flows from continuing use, that 
are largely independent from cash flows of other 
assets and cash generating units.

	 An impairment loss is recognised whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

i. Calculation of Recoverable Amount

	 The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of 
its value in use and fair value, less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time of value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does 
not generate largely independent cash inflows, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash 
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

ii. Reversal of Impairment

	 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are 
assessed at each reporting date for any indication 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount.

	 An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if 
no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.1.6.	 Leases (Right-of-Use Assets)
	 At inception, the Company assesses whether a 

contract is or contains a lease. This assessment 
involves the exercise of judgement about whether 

it depends on a specified asset, whether the 
Company obtains substantially all the economic 
benefits from the use of that asset, and whether 
the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset.

	 The Company recognises right of use (ROU) 
assets and the amount of lease liabilities at the 
commencement of the lease. The cost of right of 
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease 
payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right of 
use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset 
and are subject to testing for impairment if there is 
an indicator.

	 Lease payments may include fixed payments 
and variable payments that depend on the lease 
agreements. When the lease contains an extension 
or purchase option that the Company considers 
reasonably certain to be exercised, the cost of the 
option is included in the lease payments.

	 ROU assets are included in the heading Property, 
Plant and Equipment, and the lease liabilities are 
included in the headings Current and Non-Current 
Financial Liabilities.

	 The Company has elected not to recognise ROU 
assets and liabilities for leases where the total 
lease term is less than or equal to 12 months, or 
for low value leases. The lease payments for such 
leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the 
lease term. 

3.1.7.	 Inventories
	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value. Raw and packaging materials 
are valued at purchase cost on a First- In-First-
Out (FIFO) basis. Purchased Energy, Technical 
Materials are valued at moving average cost for the 
period. Work-In-Progress and Finished Goods are 
valued at weighted average cost including all direct 
expenditure and production overheads based on 
the normal level of activity.

	 Net realisable value is the price at which 
inventories can be sold in the normal course of 
business after allowing for the cost of realisation 
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and, where appropriate, the cost of conversion 
from their existing state to a finished condition. 
Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, 
slow-moving and defective stocks.

3.1.8.	 Employee Benefits
a) Defined Benefit Plan

	 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined 
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan 
by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is 
discounted to determine its present value. The 
fair value of plan asset is deducted to arrive at 
net defined benefit obligation. The Company 
determines the Net Interest Expense / (Income) 
on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) for 
the period by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the Defined Benefit Obligation at the 
beginning of the annual period to the Net Defined 
Benefit Liability / (Asset), taking into account any 
change in the net defined benefit liability during 
the period as a result of contributions and benefit 
payments.

	 The calculation is performed annually by an 
independent actuary using the “Projected Unit 
Credit Method.” When the calculation results in a 
benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is 
limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from 
the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan. In order to calculate the present value 
of economic benefits, consideration is given to 
any minimum funding requirements that apply to 
any plan in the Company. An economic benefit is 
available to the Company if it is realisable during 
the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan 
liabilities.

	 Re-measurements arising from defined benefit 
plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the 
return on plan assets (excluding interest). The 
Company recognises them immediately in Other 
Comprehensive Income. All other expenses 
related to defined benefit plans are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.

	 When the benefits of a plan are changed, the 
portion of the changed benefit related to past 
service by employees is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss when the plan amendment occurs.

b) Defined Contribution Plans 

	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have 
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution plans are recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income when they  
are due.

	 All employees of the Company are members of 
either the Mercantile Service Provident Society 
(MSPS) or Employee Provident Fund (EPF) 
to which the Company contributes 12%, and 
Employee Trust Fund (ETF), to which the Company 
contributes 3% of such employees’ wages or 
salary.

	 In addition to the statutory contributions 
mentioned above, the Company commenced 
contributions of 2% (for employees over 5 years) 
and 5% (for employees over 10 years) to the MSPS 
under a new defined contribution scheme offered 
to employees joining after 1 January 2006 from 
July 2014 onwards.

c) Share-Based Payments

	 The Company participates in the Nestlé 
Performance / Restricted Stock Unit plan of 
Nestlé S.A, the parent Company, where selected 
employees are granted rights to obtain the stock 
units of Nestlé S.A. This represents a cash settled 
share-based payments arrangement in accordance 
with SLFRS 2 Share Based Payment Accordingly, 
the grant-date fair value of stock units granted to 
employees is recognised as an employee expense, 
with a corresponding increase in liability over the 
period that the employees become unconditionally 
entitled to the awards. Until the liability to the 
parent Company is settled, the liability is re-
measured at each reporting date and at the 
settlement date, and the difference, if any from the 
previously reported is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income.
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3.1.9.	 Liabilities and Provisions
	 Liabilities and provisions are recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Position when there is a 
present legal /constructive obligation as a result 
of the past events, the settlement of which is 
expected to result in an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits. Obligations 
payable at the demand of the creditor, or within 
one year of the reporting date, are treated as 
current liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position. Liabilities payable after one year from the 
reporting date are treated as non-current liabilities 
in the Statement of Financial Position.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a Interest Expense.

Dividends

	 Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period 
in which they are declared and approved for 
distribution.

3.1.10.	Revenue
Sale of Goods

	 Sales represent amounts received and 
receivable for goods supplied to the customers. 
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income at the time when control 
of the goods has been transferred to the customer.

	 Revenue is measured as the amount of 
consideration which the Company expects 
to receive, net of returns, sales taxes, pricing 
allowances, other trade discounts and volume 
rebates. The level of discounts, allowances and 
promotional rebates (collectively 'trade spend') 
is recognised as a deduction from revenue at the 
time that the related sales are recognised or when 
the rebate is offered to the customer.

	 They are estimated using judgments based on 
historical experience and the specific terms of the 
agreements with the customers.

3.1.11.	Other Operating Income
	 a) �Gain / Loss from Sale of Property, Plant and 

Equipment

	 Any gains or losses on retirement or disposal of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised 
in the period in which the sale occurs and is 
classified as Other Operating Income or Expense.

b) Other Income

	 Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

3.1.12.	Expenses
	 Expense Recognition

a) Revenue Expenditure

	 The profit earned by the Company, as shown 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, is after providing for all 
known liabilities and for depreciation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

	 For the purpose of presentation of the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Directors are of the opinion that the 
function of expenses method presents fairly the 
elements of the Company performance, hence 
such presentation method is adopted.

b) Capital Expenditure

	 Expenditure incurred for the purpose of extending 
or improving assets of a permanent nature, by 
means to carry on the business or for the purpose 
of increasing the earning capacity of the business, 
has been treated as capital expenditure.

3.1.13.	Finance Income and Finance Expenses
	 Net finance expenses comprise of interest on 

financial liabilities, interest on funds invested/
deposited and foreign exchange gains and losses 
relating to Liquid Assets that are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.

	 All interest and other costs incurred in connection 
with borrowings are expensed as incurred, as 
part of net finance expenses, except to the extent 
which is eligible for capitalisation.

Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1.14.	Income Tax Expense	
	 Income tax expense for the year comprises 

current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity.

a) Current Tax

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the 
taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date as per the provisions of the Inland Revenue 
Act No. 24 of 2017, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

b) Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes, and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes.

	 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

	 A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax 
losses and deductible temporary differences, to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be 
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realised.

3.1.15.	Statement of Cash Flows
	 The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared 

using the indirect method in accordance with the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 7 – Statement 
of Cash Flows (LKAS 7).

3.1.16.	Related Party Transactions
	 Disclosure has been made in respect of the 

transactions in which one party has the ability 
to control or exercise significant influence over 
the financial and operating policies / decisions of 
the other, irrespective of whether a price is being 
charged or not.

	 The relevant details are disclosed in the respective 
Notes to the Financial Statements.

3.1.17.	Earnings Per Share (EPS)
	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or 

loss attributable to ordinary Shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

	 Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
attributable to ordinary Shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on conversion of all the 
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary 
shares.

3.1.18.	Operating Segments
	 A segment is a distinguishable component of 

the Company that is engaged either in providing 
related products (business segment), or in 
providing products within a particular economic 
environment (geographical segment), which is 
subject to risks and returns that are different from 
those of other segments.

	 Nestlé Lanka PLC is primarily involved in the 
business of manufacturing, marketing, selling 
and distribution of food and beverage products. 
The entire business is organised as one segment 
for making operating decisions in assessing 
performance by the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker. Further, information of the business is 
reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
as a whole. Therefore the Board of Directors is of 
the opinion that there are no identifiable operating 
segments within the Company. Therefore the 
disclosure requirements of SLFRS 8 will not be 
applicable to Nestlé Lanka PLC.
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3.1.19.	Borrowing Costs
	 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 

in the period in which they are incurred, except 
to the extent that they are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
in which case they are capitalised as part of the 
cost of the asset.

3.1.20.	Comparative Information
	 Comparative information has been reclassified 

where necessary to conform to the current year’s 
presentation.

3.1.21.	Commitments and Contingencies
	 Contingencies are possible assets or obligations 

that arise from a past event, where existence 
is confirmed only on the occurrence or non-
occurrence of uncertain future events which are 
beyond the Company’s control.

3.1.22.	Events Occurring After the Reporting Period
	 All material events occurring after the reporting 

period have been considered, disclosed and 
adjusted where applicable. 

4.	� Changes to Accounting Standards, 
that may affect the Company after 31 
December 2020

	 The following amendments to the existing 
accounting standards which will be effective 
from 01 January 2021 are not expected to have 
a significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements.

-	 Amendments to SLFRS 9, LKAS 39 and  
SLFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

- 	Amendment to SLFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related 
Rent Concessions

Notes to the Financial Statements

5.	 Revenue	

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Domestic 33,913,605 32,021,662 
Export 6,140,121 6,410,313 
Total Revenue 40,053,726 38,431,975 
Less : Trade Discounts and Volume Rebates (2,187,511) (2,076,891)

37,866,215 36,355,084 

6.	 Other Operating Income / (Expense)	

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Net Foreign Exchange Loss (102,380) (139,230)
Net Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (2,205) (35,614)
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - (12,052)
Income from Scrap Sales 47,931 50,935 

(56,654) (135,961)

7.	 Profit from Operating Activities	
	 Profit from Operating Activities are Stated after Charging / (Crediting) All Expenses Including the 

Following:

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Employees Benefit Expense (Note 7.1) 2,801,786 2,749,964 
General Licence Fee 1,829,334 1,762,080 
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 968,272 1,029,719 
Provision for Inventories and Inventory Written Off 169,542 334,573 
Net Impairment of Trade Receivables (3,560) (3,832)
Legal Fees 16,958 14,221 
Auditors Remuneration - Audit 3,600 3,750 
	 - Non-Audit 375 744 

7.1	 Employees Benefit Expense	

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Salaries and Wages 2,049,326 1,970,321
Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans 188,547 189,532
Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations (Note 19.3) 94,150 99,830
Other Benefits 469,763 490,281

2,801,786 2,749,964
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8.	 Net Finance Income / (Expense)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Finance Income
Interest on Bank and Other Deposits 7,439 6,573 
Imputed Interest on Staff Loans 31,731 30,390 

39,170 36,963 
Finance Expense
Interest on Financial Liabilities (267,297) (354,225)
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Liquid Assets (4,858) (1,715)

(272,155) (355,940)
(232,985) (318,977)

9.	 Income Tax Expense	

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Current Tax Expense
Tax on Current Year Profits 1,142,563 1,031,474 
Provision in Respect of Previous Years 102,655 173,678 

1,245,218 1,205,152 

Deferred Tax Expense
Origination / (Reversal) of Temporary Differences (Note 20.1) 71,820 (1,241)

1,317,038 1,203,911 

9.1	 Reconciliation Between Accounting Profit and Taxable Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Accounting Profit Before Tax  4,263,921  3,769,894 
Net Disallowances / (Allowances)  (49,794)  35,570 
Accounting Depreciation  968,271  1,029,719 
Capital Allowances  (1,101,815)  (1,153,117)
Taxable Profit  4,080,583  3,682,066 

Tax on Current Year Profit  1,142,563  1,031,474 

Notes to the Financial Statements

9.2	 Reconciliation of the Accounting Profit to Income Tax Expense	

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Accounting Profit Before Tax  4,263,921  3,769,894 
Tax at Statutory Rate of 28%  1,193,898  1,055,570 
Adjustments in Respect of  Previous Years (Note 21)  102,655  131,975 
Tax Effect of Net Permanent Differences  20,485  16,366 
Income Tax Expense  1,317,038  1,203,911 

10.	 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)	
	 The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders, 

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Net profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares are given below:	

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 2,946,883 2,565,983
Weighted Average Number of Shares 53,725,463 53,725,463
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 54.85 47.76

11.	 Dividend Per Share	
	 The Board of Directors has declared an interim dividend of Rs. 35.00 per share on 18 February 2021 and have also 

proposed a final dividend of Rs. 20.00 per share for the year ended 31 December 2020, to be approved by the 
Shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company. In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard, Events After the Reporting Period (LKAS 10), the interim and final dividend have not been recognised as 
a liability as at 31 December 2020.

	 Dividend (including Interim) per share of the Company is Rs. 55.00 for 2020 (2019 - Rs. 47.50).

12.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Property, Plant and Equipment Owned (Note 12.1) 8,265,987 8,884,424
Right-of-Use Assets (Note 12.2) 130,952 127,881

8,396,939 9,012,305
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12.1.1	The cost of fully depreciated property plant and equipment which are still in use as at 31 December 2020 is 
amounted to Rs. 3,045 million (2019 - Rs. 2,531 million).

12.1.2	Freehold land & building situated at No.440, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 was revalued on 05 October 2020 
by Messer. KPMG Deal Advisory (Pvt) Ltd, (Certified by Mr. B. J. B. Kariyawasam, Independent Chartered Valuer). 
Market values and other details are given in the following table;

Property Valuation 
Techniques

Extent Rs. Mn Significant 
Unobservable Inputs

Freehold Land Market Approach 239 P 3,107 Price per perch  
Rs.13 Mn

Freehold Building (1 Building) Cost Approach 50,038 sq. ft. 210 Price per sq. ft.  
Rs. 6,000

	 Description of Valuation Techniques

Market Approach Cost Approach

The selling price of a similar property within a reasonably 
recent period of time in determining the fair value of the 
property being revalued. This involves evaluation of recent 
active market prices of similar assets, making appropriate 
adjustments for any differences in the nature, size, location 
or condition of the specific property.

The market value of a property is estimated as a 
function of the current cost to purchase or replace 
the property. Adjustments to new replacement cost 
are made to account for depreciation to determine 
the market value of the property.

	 However, the market values have not been considered in the financial statements; the said property is stated at 
cost.

	 There were no restrictions that existed on the title to the property, plant and equipment of the Company as at the 
reporting date.
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12.2	 Right-of-Use Assets	

Motor
Land Buildings Vehicles Total

Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2019 769 34,178 197,899 232,846
Additions - 2,200 43,279 45,479
Disposals - - (39,212) (39,212)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 769 36,378 201,966 239,113
Depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2019 581 7,074 52,003 59,658
Charge For the Year 16 12,126 78,644 90,786
On Disposals - - (39,212) (39,212)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 597 19,200 91,435 111,232
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2020 769 36,378 201,966 239,113
Additions - 41,505 32,364 73,869
Disposals - (36,378) (49,503) (85,881)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 769 41,505 184,827 227,101
Depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2020 597 19,200 91,435 111,232
Charge For the Year 15 12,411 51,299 63,725
On Disposals - (29,305) (49,503) (78,808)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 612 2,306 93,231 96,149

Written Down Value
As at 31 December 2019 172 17,178 110,531 127,881
As at 31 December 2020 157 39,199 91,596 130,952

	 The leasehold land is for factory premises with a duration of fifty years.  

	 The leasehold building is in relation to warehouse space with a duration of three years.

	 Vehicle leases are for contract terms of two to five years.

	 These leases include an option to renew at mutually agreed terms and conditions after the end of the contract 
term.

13.	 Capital Work-In-Progress

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balance as at 1 January 377,235 673,117 
Additions During the Year 342,305 273,896
Capitalised During the Year (195,703) (569,778)
Balance as at 31 December 523,837 377,235 

Notes to the Financial Statements

14.	 Inventories

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Raw and Packaging Materials  1,627,964  1,416,790 
Finished Goods  1,806,538  1,241,612 
Energy and Technical Materials  379,960  349,326 
Work-In-Progress  75,527  61,672 
Goods-In-Transit  1,057,806  416,730 

 4,947,795  3,486,130 

	 During 2020, Rs. 11.6 million (2019: Nil) was recognised under Cost of Sales for inventories where net realisable 
value is lower than its carrying value. 

15.	 Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Trade Receivables (Note 15.1) 1,797,703 2,479,423 
Other Receivables (Note 15.2) 248,134 207,290 

2,045,837 2,686,713

15.1	 Trade Receivables	

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Trade Receivables 1,924,234 2,609,514 
Less: Impairment of Trade Receivables (Note 15.1.1) (126,531) (130,091)

1,797,703 2,479,423 

15.1.1	Impairment of Trade Receivables	

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balance as at 1 January 130,091 133,923 
Net Charge / (Reversal) for the Year (3,560) (3,832)
Balance as at 31 December 126,531 130,091 
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15.2	 Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Loans to Employees (Note 15.2.1) 394,277 411,477 
Prepayments 117,233 83,078 
Derivatives - Forward Exchange Contract 14,536 15,909 
Others 71,115 62,941 

597,161 573,405 

Current 248,134 207,290 
Non-Current 349,027 366,115 

597,161 573,405 

15.2.1	Loans to Employees

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balance as at 1 January 411,477 401,721 
Granted During the Year 144,468 174,767 
Repaid During the Year (161,668) (165,011)
Balance as at 31 December 394,277 411,477 

	 All employee loans are disbursed as per the Company policies. No loans have been granted to any of the 
Directors.	

Notes to the Financial Statements

16. 	 Amounts Due from Related Parties

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Nestlé Australia Ltd - 11,472 
Nestlé Business Services AOA, Inc. 43 - 
Nestlé Canada, Inc. - 8,802 
Nestlé Caribbean, Inc. - 7,876 
Nestlé India Ltd 17,726 91,701 
Nestlé Jamaica Ltd - 50,495 
Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 822 6,850 
Nestlé Middle East FZE - 106,480 
Nestlé (PNG) Ltd - 3,121 
Nestlé R&D Center (Pte) Ltd 1,528 - 
Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Ltd 182 1,724 
Nestlé Suisse S.A. - 3,248 
Nestlé Taiwan Ltd - 7,565 
Nestlé (Thai) Ltd - 13,699 
Nestlé Trinidad and Tobago Ltd - 38,826 
Nestlé UK Ltd - 11,933 
Nestlé USA, Inc. 16 -
Nestlé Waters Marketing & Distribution - 2,360 
Nestrade S.A 420,015 68,324 

440,332 434,476 

17.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents	

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balances with Banks 2,098,733 495,106 
Short Term Deposits 409,179 12,479 
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the statement of financial position 2,507,912 507,585 

Bank Overdrafts and Other Current Financial Liabilities [Excluding Short Term 
Lease Liabilities & Loan from Related Party] (Note 22.2)

(89,798) (924,135)

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the statement of cash flows 2,418,114 (416,550)

	 The Company has no restrictions on Cash and Cash Equivalents from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.



78 Annual Report 2020Nestlé Lanka PLC 79

18.	 Stated Capital	

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Ordinary Shares Issued and Fully-paid
53,725,463 Ordinary Shares 537,255 537,255 

	 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

19.	 Retirement Benefit Obligations

As at 31 December 2020 2019 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Pension Plan 587,010 570,750 
Gratuity Plan 623,920 565,190 
Total Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations (Note 19.1) 1,210,930 1,135,940 
Total Fair Value of Plan Assets (Note 19.2) (771,810) (767,000)
Present Value of Net Retirement Benefit Obligations 439,120 368,940 

	 Employees who joined prior to 2006 and who hold a minimum 10 years of service, are entitled to a lump sum 
pension upon retirement at the age of 55 years. In addition, there are 22 (2019 - 24) retired employees who are 
drawing a monthly pension under the old pension plan, which was discontinued in 2014.

	 The liability to Retirement Benefit Obligation under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, is a defined benefit 
plan covering all permanent employees of the Company.

	 The Gratuity Plan and Pension Plan is partially funded by a policy obtained from AIA Insurance Lanka Ltd.. The 
contributions to the fund by the Company are based on actuarial valuations carried out by AIA Insurance Lanka 
Ltd.. The Company expects to pay Rs. 125 million as contributions to its plan assets for the period ended 31 
December 2021. Employees are not required to contribute to this fund.

	 The Actuarial Calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary, M/s Willis Towers Watson India Private 
Limited, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.

Notes to the Financial Statements

19.1	 Movement in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations:	

 2020 2019 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balance as at 1 January 1,135,940 1,137,990 
Current Service Cost 60,980 62,450 
Interest Cost 115,260 119,770 
Benefits Paid to the Employees (214,520) (193,840)
Remeasurements
Actuarial Loss / (Gain) - Experience Loss (22,960) (8,140)
Actuarial Loss / (Gain) - Financial Assumptions 136,230 17,710 
Balance as at 31 December 1,210,930 1,135,940 

	 The weighted average duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

	 Pension Plan - 7 years (2019 : 7 years)
	 Gratuity Plan - 13 years (2019 : 13 years)	

19.2	 Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:	

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Balance as at 1 January 767,000 747,290 
Contributions Paid by employer 120,820 117,060 
Benefits Reimbursed by the plan (198,860) (177,410)
Interest Income 82,090 82,390 
Return of Plan Assets greater/(lesser) than Discount Rate (Excluding Interest 
Income)

760 (2,330)

Balance as at 31 December 771,810 767,000 

19.3	 The Expense Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Current Service Cost 60,980 62,450 
Net Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 33,170 37,380 

94,150 99,830 
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19.4	 Expected Benefit Payments to Employees
	 The Expected Benefit Payment for the Year Ending

Pension Gratuity Total 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

31 December 2021 45,660 33,870 79,530 
31 December 2022 55,400 38,010 93,410 
31 December 2023 139,210 116,830 256,040 
31 December 2024 47,010 42,640 89,650 
31 December 2025 81,640 83,260 164,900 
31 December 2026 to 2030 403,540 490,830 894,370 

19.5	� The Income / (Expense) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, in relation to Retirement Benefit 
Obligation:

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) (112,510) (11,900)
Deferred Tax Impact on Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 31,503 3,332 
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) - Net of Tax (81,007) (8,568)

19.6	 Actuarial Assumptions
	 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the reporting date:	

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

(1) Rate of Discount 8.0% 11.0%
(2) Future Salary Increase
    First 5 Years 8.0% to 9.0% 8.0% to 11.0%
    Beyond 5 Years 8.0% 8.0% to 9.0%
(3) Future Pension Increase 7.0% 6.0%

	 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

	 The assumption made for the expected rate of return on assets have been derived by considering the best 
estimate for the expected long-term real rates of return and return from the main asset classes.

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, performance, 
promotion, grades and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.

	 As Defined Benefit Obligations are relatively long-term in nature, the actuarial assumptions take into account 
the requirements of the LKAS 19 coupled with a long-term view of the underlying variables / trends, wherever 
required.

Notes to the Financial Statements

19.6.1	Sensitivity Analysis
	 The calculation of the Defined Benefit Obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following 

table summarises how the impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the reporting period would have 
increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by 0.5%, holding other assumptions 
constant.

	 Defined Benefit Obligation

+0.5% -0.5%
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Rate of Discount (36,860) 39,030 
Future Salary Increase 36,060 (34,440)
Future Pension Increase 5,290 (5,000)

Scaled up Scaled down 

by 1 year by 1 year 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Mortality Rates (4,410) 4,450

19.7	 The Composition of Insurance Plan Asset is as follows:	

2020 2019

Reporting Entity’s Own Financial Instruments Nil Nil
Property Occupied by, or Other Assets Used by, the Reporting Entity Nil Nil

The Investment Portfolio of AIA Insurance Lanka Ltd. as at 31 December 2020 2019

Government Securities 72.3% 58.00%
Corporate Debt 26.2% 27.6%
Fixed Deposits 0.0% 9.7%
Policyholder Loans 1.4% 1.0%
Equity 0.1% 3.7%

100.0% 100.0%
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20.	 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities	

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 997,439 1,000,725
Net Charge/ (Reversal) for the Year 38,680 (3,286)
Balance as at 31 December 1,036,119 997,439

20.1	 Deferred Taxes - Origination/ (Reversal) of Temporary Differences	

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 71,820 (1,241)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (33,140) (2,045)

38,680 (3,286)

	 Deferred Taxes of the company is computed at the rate of 28% (2019 - 28%).          

20.2	 Types of Temporary Differences and the related Tax Effect	

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Temporary Tax Effect Temporary Tax Effect
Difference Difference

Property, Plant and Equipment 4,764,525 1,334,067 4,596,723 1,287,082
Retirement Benefit Obligations (300,800) (84,224) (308,594) (86,406)
Other Employee Benefits (485,361) (135,901) (413,795) (115,862)
Inventories, Receivables and Others (277,939) (77,823) (312,052) (87,375)

3,700,425 1,036,119 3,562,282 997,439

21.	 Non-Current Provisions

2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 421,434 289,459
Provisions / (Reversals) 102,655 131,975
Utilisation / Settlement - -
Balance as at 31 December 524,089 421,434

	 Non-Current Provisions represent estimates made mainly for probable claims arising out of dispute / litigation 
pending with the relevant authorities. The probability and the timing of the outflow with regard to these matters 
depend on the ultimate settlement /conclusion with the relevant authorities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

22.	 Financial Liabilities

As at 31 December Interest 2020 2019
Rate Maturity Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

22.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities
Loan from Related Party (Note 22.3) 10.5% May 2021 - 1,893,000 
Non-Current Lease Liabilities (Note 22.4) 10.1% - 14.0% 2021 - 2031 84,460 91,029 

84,460 1,984,029 

22.2 Current Financial Liabilities
Bank Overdrafts 1,801 9,895 
Distributor Finance with Recourse to Company 87,997 194,240
Short-Term Bank Loans - 720,000 
Current Lease Liabilities (Note 22.4) 70,958 63,442 
Loan from Related Party (Note 22.3) 1,893,000 - 

2,053,756 987,577 

22.3	 Loan from Related Party
	 The Company obtained a loan from the Nestlé Treasury Centre - Middle East and Africa Ltd in May 2018, 

amounting to LKR 1,893 million, to partially fund Capital Expenditure. The interest rate was priced on an arm’s 
length basis and approved by the Related Party Transactions Review Committee meeting held on 22 February 
2018.

	 The loan is free from any foreign currency exposure / fluctuations and is for a duration of three years.

22.4	 Lease Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 2019 
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Maturity Analysis - Contractual Undiscounted Amounts
Not Later Than One Year 71,765 63,467
Later Than One Year and Not Later Than Five Years 91,218 101,599
Later Than Five Years 9,105 10,319

172,088 175,385 
Discounted Amounts included in the Statement of Financial Position
Current (Note 22.2) 70,958 63,442
Non-Current (Note 22.1) 84,460 91,029

155,418 154,471
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22.4.1	Amounts Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Interest on Lease Liabilities 13,656 19,042 
Depreciation on Lease Assets 63,725 90,786 
Expenses relating to Short-Term Leases 21,211 4,833 
�Expenses relating to Leases of Low Value Assets, excluding Short-Term  
Leases of Low Value Assets 8,194 4,251 

106,786 118,912

22.4.2	Amounts Recognised in Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Total Cash Outflow for Lease Liabilities 65,887 87,018

23.	 Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Trade Payables 3,918,784 2,780,121
Customers’ Credit Balances and Trade Accruals 936,735 879,326
Employee Related Payables 556,279 487,736
Supplier Payables Relating to Capital Expenditure 348,575 327,353
Derivatives - Forward Exchange Contract 11,674 9,575
Others 453,249 467,114

6,225,296 4,951,225

Notes to the Financial Statements

24.	 Amounts Due to Related Parties

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

LOTTE - Nestlé (Korea) Co., Ltd - 3,022 
Nestlé R&D Centre (Pte) Ltd - 291 
Nestlé Australia Ltd. 40,786 38,665 
Nestlé Brasil Ltda - 413 
Nestlé Business Services AOA, Inc. - 477 
Nestlé Cameroun S.A. - 9,029 
Nestlé Dubai Manufacturing LLC - 4,343 
Nestlé France S.A.S. 1,065 410 
Nestlé India Ltd 41,902 70,705 
Nestlé Japan Ltd - 226 
Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. - 77,581 
Nestlé Nederland B.V. - 3,916 
Nestlé Operational Services Worldwide S.A. 2,052 14,646 
Nestlé Philippines, Inc. - 144,444 
Nestle Product Technology Center, Singen - 413 
Nestlé Products Sdn. Bhd. - 12,133 
Nestlé Regional Service Centre (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 740 -
Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Ltd - 182,433 
Nestlé Suisse S.A. 384 9,586 
Nestlé (Thai) Ltd. - 4,308 
Nestlé Treasury Centre - Middle East & Africa LTD. 23,741 22,030 
Nestlé USA Inc. - 2,456 
Nestlé Vietnam Ltd. - 836 
Nestlé Waters Management & Technology - 582 
Nestrade S.A. 1,647,799 73,145 
P.T. Nestlé Indonesia - 513 
Société des Produits Nestlé S.A. 134,618 128,443 

1,893,087 805,046
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25.	 Related Party Disclosure	
25.1	 Transactions With Related Companies	
25.1.1	Recurrent Related Party Transactions	 	

2020 2019
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of Transaction Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

LOTTE - Nestlé (Korea) Co., Ltd Affiliate Imports (4,665) (41,531)
Nestec S.A. Affiliate Recoveries / 

(Reimbursement) - 1,226 
Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Affiliate Re-Export (9,359) (26,575)

Nestlé Australia Limited Affiliate

Imports / Re-Export (67,993) (146,584)
Recoveries - 61 
Services Received (408,215) (323,944)
Exports 37,962 76,749 

Nestlé Bangladesh Limited Affiliate
Imports - (56,749)
Recoveries 622 - 
Exports - 2,319 

Nestlé Brasil Ltda Affiliate
Imports (1,851) (1,398)
Services Received - (108)

Nestlé Business Service AOA Inc Affiliate Services Received (2,510) (1,884)
Nestlé Cameroun Affiliate Imports / Re-Export (1,109) (14,663)

Nestlé Canada Inc. Affiliate
Exports 9,531 63,526 
Recoveries - 117 

Nestlé Caribbean Affiliate Exports - 10,500 
Nestlé Deutschland AG Affiliate Recoveries 156 - 
Nestlé Dominicana S.A. Affiliate Exports 3,163 - 
Nestlé Dubai Manufacturing LLC Affiliate Imports (4,930) (16,410)
Nestlé France Affiliate Services Received (9,107) (2,250)

Nestlé (Thai) Limited Affiliate
Exports 33,768 47,126 
Reimbursement (63) - 
Imports / Re-Export (14,008) (30,984)

Nestlé India Limited Affiliate

Exports 417,236 859,487 
Recoveries / 
(Reimbursement) (375) (1,588)
Imports (20,623) (45,151)
Services Received (292,750) (247,853)

Nestlé Jamaica Limited Affiliate Exports 77,148 118,983 
Nestlé Japan Limited Affiliate Exports 33,778 70,337 

Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Affiliate
Imports / Re-Export (391,861) (988,019)
Services Received (2,955) (2,956)
Exports 45,614 20,809 

Nestlé Middle East FZE Affiliate
Exports 376,412 1,075,121 
Recoveries / 
(Reimbursement) 3,637 - 

Nestlé Middle East Manufacturing Affiliate Recoveries 158 - 

Notes to the Financial Statements

2020 2019
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of Transaction Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Nestlé Nederlands B.V. Affiliate Imports (13,700) (23,298)
Nestlé Nigeria Plc Affiliate Recoveries - 1,172 

Nestlé Operational Services Worldwide S.A. Affiliate
Reimbursement (2,853) (7,791)
Services Received (59,573) (45,889)
Recoveries 158 - 

Nestlé Panama S.A. Affiliate Exports 4,921 - 

Nestlé Philippines, Inc. Affiliate

Imports (831,339) (1,728,169)
Recoveries / 
(Reimbursement) 17,042 4,023 
Exports 188,668 - 

Nestlé (PNG) Limited Affiliate Exports 28,706 53,305 

Nestlé Products Sdn Bhd Affiliate
Imports / Re-Export (34,246) (107,602)
Reimbursement - (1,862)

Nestlé Products Technologhy Centre Affiliate Reimbursement - (410)

Nestlé R & D Centre (Pte) Limited Affiliate
Services Received (6,563) (7,978)
Recoveries / 
(Reimbursement) 671 (180)

Nestlé Regional Service Center Affiliate Reimbursement (746) - 
Nestlé S.A. Parent Dividend Payment* / 

PSUP* (2,410,326) (2,506,685)
Nestlé Servicios Corporativos Affiliate Reimbursement - (1,741)

Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Limited Affiliate

Exports - 6,796 
Reimbursement (446) (119)
Recoveries 155 - 
Imports (982,750) (1,930,905)

Nestlé Suisse S.A. Affiliate
Exports 7,809 12,984 
Imports (24,025) (41,620)
Reimbursement (203) (236)

Nestlé Taiwan Limited Affiliate
Exports 16,820 53,446 
Recoveries 156 - 

Nestlé Treasury Centre Middle East  
& Africa LTD

Affiliate
Loan Interest (202,078) (201,526)

Nestlé Trinidad and Tobago Limited Affiliate
Exports 60,404 118,958 
Recoveries 34,745 - 

Nestlé UK Limited Affiliate
Exports 46,101 117,388 
Imports (4,037) (7,002)

Nestlé USA Inc. Affiliate Services Received (7,171) (2,914)

Nestlé Vietnam Ltd. Affiliate
Imports / Re-Export (875) (9,613)
Exports 852 - 

Nestlé Waters Marketing Affiliate
Imports / Re-Export (7,089) (30,135)
Recoveries - 2,340 
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2020 2019
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of Transaction Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Nestlé Waters Management Affiliate Services Received (575) (575)

Nestrade S.A. Affiliate

Recoveries 18,326 10,615 
Services Rendered 34,113 39,798 
Exports 1,920,450 299,962 
Services Received (252,372) (218,619)
Imports (2,503,054) (22,794)

P.T. Nestlé Indonesia Affiliate
Imports - (9,046)
Reimbursement (388) (16)

Société des Produits Nestlé S.A. Affiliate
General Licence Fee (1,829,335) (1,762,080)
Services Received (4,028) (1,234)
Reimbursement (2,577) (4,496)

	 * Exempted Related Party Transactions as per section 9.5 (b) and (c) of Listing Rules.

	 Aggregated value of the recurrent Related Party Transactions (excluding exempted Related Party Transactions) as a 
percentage of gross revenue is 28.5% (2019 - 29.1%).

	 Transactions with Related Parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business and were made on terms 
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.		

25.1.2	Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions	

2020 2019
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of Transaction Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Nestrade S.A. Affiliate Capital Expenditure (28,268) (41,196)

	 Transactions with Related Parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business and were made on terms 
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

	 There were no Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions which in aggregate value exceeds 10% of the equity 
or 5% of the total assets whichever is lower of the Company as per 31 December 2020 audited financial 
statements.	

Notes to the Financial Statements

25.2	 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
	 Key management personnel include all the members of the Board of Directors of the Company having authority 

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Executive Directors’ Emoluments
Short-Term Employee Benefits 156,438 151,691 
Share Based Payments 42,261 48,751

198,699 200,442 
Non-Executive Director’s Fees 1,800 1,800 

200,499 202,242
 
25.3	 Share-Based Payments (SBP)	
	 The Company participates in the Nestlé Performance / Restricted Stock Unit (PSU/RSU) plan of Nestlé S.A. 

whereby selected employees are granted non-tradable stock units with the right to obtain Nestlé S.A. shares 
or cash equivalents. Performance / Restricted stock units are granted to employees vest, subject to certain 
conditions, after completion of three years. Upon vesting, Nestlé S.A. determines whether shares, free of charge 
or cash equivalent to the value of shares, is to be transferred to the employee. The Company has to pay Nestlé 
S.A. an amount equivalent to the value of Nestlé S.A. shares on the date of vesting, delivered to the employee. 
Accruals are made based on estimates, including the Nestlé S.A. share price, and the period end exchange rate 
over the vesting period of three years.

For the Year Ended 31 December  2020 2019
 Rs.‘000s  Rs.‘000s 

Number of Shares Granted During the Year  2,467  2,704 
Fair Value of Shares Granted During the Year  55,827  39,461 
Total Expense Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss  80,696  87,038 
Carrying Amount as at the Reporting Date  108,848  120,774 

	 There are no Related Party Transactions other than those disclosed in Notes 16, 22, 24 and 25	

26.	 Financial Risk Management
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to a number of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk).

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Company’s risk management procedures are established to identify and analyse the 
risks faced by the Company, set appropriate risk limits, and to control and monitor risks to ensure adherence.



90 Annual Report 2020Nestlé Lanka PLC 91

	 (a) Credit Risk - 

	 Credit risk arises when the counterparty may fail to perform its obligation. The risk in this regard arises from trade 
and other receivables, which are subject to credit limits and control and approval procedures to minimise the 
extent of the Company’s financial exposure. Bank guarantees are obtained where possible to minimise the risk 
further.

	 The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only with counterparties that have an existing business 
relationship at a global level with Nestlé Group. For all short-term investments, credit rating of the counterparty 
should be ”Investment Grade”, as rated by an independent rating agency.

	 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, which at the reporting date is as 
follows.

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Trade Receivables 1,797,703 2,479,423
Loans to Employees 394,277 411,477
Amount Due from Related Parties 440,332 434,476
Other Non-Trade Receivables 71,115 62,941

2,703,427 3,388,317
The Ageing of Trade Receivables as at the reporting date were as:
Not Past Due 1,489,596 2,283,392
Past Due 1-30 Days 322,091 152,840
Past Due 31-60 Days 37,873 50,165
Past Due 61-90 Days 10,108 30,892
Past Due 91-120 Days 6,239 6,938
Past Due More Than 120 Days 58,327 85,287
Impairment of Trade Receivables (126,531) (130,091)

1,797,703 2,479,423

Notes to the Financial Statements

	 (b) Liquidity risk - 

	 Liquidity risk arises when the Company encounters difficulties to meet commitments associated with liabilities and 
other payment obligations. In the management of liquidity risk the Company monitors and maintains sufficient 
backup lines to finance Company’s operations. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between 
continuity of funding and flexibility through short-term and long-term borrowings.

	 The Contractual Maturities of Financial Liabilities are as follows:	

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Less than 6
Months

6 - 12
Months

1 - 5 
Years

Less than 6
Months

6 - 12
Months

1 - 5
Years

Trade and Other Payables*  6,137,502  -    -    4,877,251  -    -   
Amounts Due to Related Parties  1,893,087  -    -    805,046  -    -   
Loan from Related Party  1,893,000  -    -    -    -    1,893,000 
Other Current Financial Liabilities 
(Excluding Lease Liabilities)

 89,798  -    -    924,135  -    -   

 10,013,387  -    -    6,606,432  -    1,893,000 

	 *Excluding Statutory Liabilities, which are payable as per due dates.

	 (c) Market Risk - 

	 The Company is exposed to risk from movements in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and market 
prices that affect its assets, liabilities and anticipated future transactions.

	 The Company’s objective is to manage the interest rate risk to minimise the adverse effects of fluctuating interest 
rates.

	 The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases that are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily 
the US Dollar (USD), Singapore Dollar (SGD), Australian Dollar (AUD), Euro (EUR) and Swiss Franc (CHF).

	 The exposures are managed within a prudent and systematic hedging policy in accordance with the Company’s 
specific needs.

	 The Company’s objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return and / or cost.	
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	 Exposure to Currency Risk

	 The Company’s exposure to currency risk as at the reporting date can be summarised as follows:	

Rs.‘000s
As at 31 Dec 2020 USD EUR SGD AUD CHF

Receivables 681,034 - - - - 
Payables (2,125,753) (111,653) (2,177) (45,799) (20,010)
Net Financial Position (1,444,719) (111,653) (2,177) (45,799) (20,010)

As at 31 Dec 2019
Receivables 775,348 2,361 - - - 
Payables (1,051,124) (60,106) (112,781) (42,130) (27,559)
Net Financial Position (275,776) (57,745) (112,781) (42,130) (27,559)

The following significant exchange rates are applied:	

As at 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

USD 185.25 181.40 
EUR 227.82 203.28 
SGD 140.23 134.76 
AUD 142.82 127.13 
CHF 210.31 187.20 

	 Sensitivity Analysis

	 Strengthening / weakening of the USD / EUR / SGD / AUD / CHF against the LKR (Lankan Rupee) would affect the 
measurement of the financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies, and the increase / decrease of profit 
or loss by the amount shown below.

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
Strengthening
Profit or Loss

Weakening
Profit or Loss

Strengthening
Profit or Loss

Weakening
Profit or Loss

Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

USD (1% movement) (14,447) 14,447 (2,758) 2,758 
EUR (1% movement) (1,117) 1,117 (577) 577 
SGD (1% movement) (22) 22 (1,128) 1,128 
AUD (1% movement) (458) 458 (421) 421 
CHF (1% movement) (200) 200 (276) 276 

Notes to the Financial Statements

	 Capital Risk Management

	 The Company’s capital management is driven by the impact on shareholders of the level of total capital employed. 
It is the Company’s policy to maintain a sound capital base to support the continued development of its 
business.	

	 The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a prudent balance between the components of the Company’s capital 
and monitors the capital structure and the net financial liabilities, in line with changes in global and local economic 
and market conditions.	

	 The gearing ratio (Financial Liabilties/ (Financial Liabilties + Equity)) of the company is 26% as at 31 December 
2020 (2019 : 35%)	

27.	 Derivative Assets and Liabilities and Hedge Accounting
	 Derivative Financial Instruments

	 Company’s derivatives mainly consist of currency forwards. Derivatives are mainly used to manage the fluctuations 
of foreign currency exchange rates as described in Note 26 (c), Market Risk.

	 Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value. They are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting 
date, with all their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income unless they are in a qualifying hedging relationship.

	 Hedge Accounting

	 The Company designates and documents the use of certain derivatives as hedging instruments against changes 
in fair values of recognised assets and liabilities (fair value hedges) and highly probable forecasted transactions 
(cash flow hedges). The effectiveness of such hedges is assessed at inception and verified at least on a quarterly 
basis to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged items and the hedging instrument.

	 Fair Value Hedges

	 The Company uses fair value hedges to mitigate foreign currency risk of its recognised assets and liabilities. 
Changes in fair values of hedging instruments designated as fair value hedges are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

	 Cash Flow Hedges

	 The Company uses cash flow hedges to mitigate foreign currency risks of highly probable forecasted transactions 
such as anticipated future export sales proceeds and payments for purchases of goods.

	 The effective part of changes in fair value of hedging instruments is recognised in the Other Comprehensive 
Income, while any ineffective part is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Ineffectiveness of hedges 
of foreign currency may result from changes in the timing of the forecasted transactions than was originally 
foreseen.	
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	 Derivatives by Hedged Risks

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s

Contractual
or Notional

Amounts

Fair Value
Assets

Fair Value
Liabilities

Contractual
or Notional

Amounts

Fair Value
Assets

Fair Value
Liabilities

Fair Value Hedges
Foreign Currency Risk - - - - - - 
Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign Currency Risk 1,592,937 14,536 11,674 2,355,327 15,909 9,575 

28.	 Fair Value Measurement
	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value of an asset or liability, the 
Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair 
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques.

	 Level 1 : Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2 : �Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

	 Level 3 : Inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	 All Company derivative assets and liabilities are categorised as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (2019 - level 2)

	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks approximate the fair value, as 
these are short-term in nature.

	 Trade and Other Receivables and Amounts Due from Related Parties

	 Trade and other receivables and Amount Due from Related Parties are expected to be settled within one year 
of the reporting date, hence the discounting impact would be immaterial. Therefore the carrying amount 
approximates the fair value as at the reporting date.

	 Trade and Other Payables and Amounts Due to Related Parties

	 Trade and other payables and Amounts Due to Related Parties are expected to be settled within one year of the 
reporting date, hence the discounting impact would be immaterial. Therefore the carrying amount approximates 
the fair value as at the reporting date.

Notes to the Financial Statements

	 Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

	 The following table shows the carrying amount and the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including their 
values in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and liabilities not 
measured at fair value, if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair Value - Hedging 
Instruments

As at 31 December 2020 2019
Rs.‘000s Rs.‘000s 

Financial Assets
Derivative - Forward Exchange Contract 14,536 15,909 

14,536 15,909 
Financial Liabilities
Derivative - Forward Exchange Contract 11,674 9,575 

11,674 9,575 

29.	 Commitments
	 Capital Commitments - The capital commitment for the year 2020, which has been approved and contracted for, 

is Rs. 88 million (2019 - Rs. 66 million).

30.	 Contingent Liabilities
	 Income Tax Assessments up to 2020 amounting to Rs. 302 Mn (Up to 2019 - Rs. 302 Mn), were issued against 

the Company for which appeals have been lodged with appropriate tax authorities. The Company is of the view 
that provisions are not required as at the reporting date since the Company believes it has a strong case.

	 There are no other material contingent liabilities.

31.	 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date
	 There were no material events occurring after the reporting date that require adjustment or disclosure in the 

financial statements, other than the following;

	 - �An interim dividend of Rs. 35.00 per share amounting to Rs. 1,880,391,205.00 was approved on 18 February 
2021 by the Board of Directors and will be paid on 04 March 2021 for shareholders via bank transfers and on 23 
March 2021 via cheques.

	 - �The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of Rs. 20.00 per share amounting to Rs. 1,074,509,260.00 
for the year ended 31 December 2020, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the upcoming Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

32.	 Comparative Information
	 Comparative information has been reclassified where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Making our packaging 100% 
recyclable 
More than 70% of our packaging by weight 
is already recyclable, and we’re committed 
to making this 100% by 2025. We’re also 
working together with the government, 
our suppliers, NGOs and other local FMCG 
companies to develop collection and 
recycling schemes. 

Good for my 
planet
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Eliminating single-use plastic
In our journey to make our packaging 
100% recyclable or reusable by 2025, 
we’ve stopped using plastic items in our 
promotions. This has helped us reduce the 
plastic we use by 250 metric tonnes.  

Good for my 
planet
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Waste Collection Programme  
in Schools
We launched our first waste management 
programme with the Central Environmental 
Authority and the Ministry of Education, to 
manage waste and create awareness about 
responsible disposal. We aim to reach 
approximately 400,000 students by the end 
of 2022. 

Good for my 
planet
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Share Information

Analysis of Shareholders According to the Number of Shares Held as at 31 December

2020 Resident 2019 Resident
Number of Shares Held Number of Number of Number of Number of

Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares %

1 - 1,000  5,206  683,166  1.26  4,984  664,178  1.24 
1,001 - 10,000  374  954,454  1.78  371  965,893  1.80 
10,001 - 100,000  42  1,086,657  2.02  39  1,004,323  1.87 
100,001 - 1,000,000  1  264,404  0.49  1  264,404  0.50 
Over 1,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 5,623  2,988,681  5.55  5,395  2,898,798  5.41 

2020 Non-Resident 2019 Non-Resident
Number of Shares Held Number of Number of Number of Number of

Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares %

1 - 1,000  55  13,440  0.03  55  13,025  0.02 
1,001 - 10,000  23  101,139  0.19  22  99,177  0.18 
10,001 - 100,000  6  218,324  0.41  11  425,580  0.79 
100,001 - 1,000,000  7  1,610,133  3.00  6  1,495,137  2.78 
Over 1,000,000  1  48,793,746  90.82  1  48,793,746  90.82 

 92  50,736,782  94.45  95  50,826,665  94.59 

2020 Total 2019 Total
Number of Shares Held Number of Number of Number of Number of

Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares %

1 - 1,000  5,261  696,606  1.29  5,039  677,203  1.26 
1,001 - 10,000  397  1,055,593  1.97  393  1,065,070  1.98 
10,001 - 100,000  48  1,304,981  2.43  50  1,429,903  2.66 
100,001 - 1,000,000  8  1,874,537  3.49  7  1,759,541  3.28 
Over 1,000,000  1  48,793,746  90.82  1  48,793,746  90.82 

 5,715  53,725,463  100.00  5,490  53,725,463  100.00 

2020 Total 2019 Total
Categories of Shareholders Number of Number of Number of Number of

Shareholders Shares Shareholders Shares

Individual 5,545 2,351,766 5,331 2,383,937
Institutional 170 51,373,697 159 51,341,526
Total 5,715 53,725,463 5,490 53,725,463
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Market Prices Per Share 2020 (Rs.) 2019 (Rs.)

Highest 10 December 1,348.90 29 January 1,750.00
Lowest 12 May 985.00 22 November 1,150.00
31 December 1,275.00 1,299.80
Public Holding as at 31 December 9.18% 9.18%
Number of Shareholders  
Represented by the Public Holding 5,713 5,488

The Directors of the company hold no shares in the Company except for Mr. Mahendra Dayananda, who holds 1,000 
shares as at period closing (previous year end 1,000 shares). 
 
Float Adjusted Market Capitalisation as at 31 December 2020 : Rs. 6,288,297 (Rs‘000). As the float adjusted market 
capitalization is over Rs. 5 billion, Nestlé Lanka PLC complies  under  option 3 of Rule 7.13.1 (a) of Listing Rules.

No. Names 2020 % 2019 %

1 Nestlé S.A. 48,793,746 90.82 48,793,746 90.82

2 Citibank New York S/A Norges Bank Account 2 493,037 0.92 493,037 0.92

3 Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd - Life Fund 264,404 0.49 264,404 0.49

4 Deutsche Bank AG - London 250,000 0.47 250,000 0.47

5 RBC Investor Services Bank-Coeli Sicav I-Frontier Markets Fund 241,342 0.45 251,742 0.47

6 Harnam Neesha Jasbinderjit  Kaur Piara Singh 200,000 0.37 200,000 0.37

7
Deutsche Bank AG Singapore A/C2 (DCS CLT Acc For Deutsche 
Bank Ag Singapore - PWM WM Client) 155,600 0.29  -    -   

8 SSBT - Al Mehwar Commercial Investments L.L.C 144,758 0.27 144,758 0.27

9
SSBT - Frank Russel Trust Company Comingled Benefit Funds 
Trust GNA-6QH3 125,396 0.23 72,040 0.13

10 Employees Provident Fund 100,000 0.19 100,000 0.19

11 BNYH RE-GHI Holdings Maruitius 75,000 0.14 75,000 0.14

12 Jasbinderjit  Kaur Piara Singh 72,194 0.13 71,300 0.13

13 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC/P.Subasinghe 68,000 0.13  -    -   

14
Union Assurance PLC / Account No. 5 (Unit-Linked Life Insurance 
Fund - Equity Fund) 54,943 0.1 82,311 0.15

15 Union Assurance PLC - Universal Life Fund 54,718 0.1  -    -   

16 Colombo Investment Trust PLC 50,904 0.09 50,904 0.09

17 Udeshi Morarji Meghji Asha Ajay Merchant 45,000 0.08 45,000 0.08

18 Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani 42,500 0.08 42,500 0.08

19 Radhakrishnan Maheswaran 36,671 0.07 36,671 0.07

20 Radhakrishnan Andal 36,667 0.07 36,667 0.07
							     

Share Information Corporate Information

Name of Company	 :	 Nestlé Lanka PLC 

Registered Office and Head Office	 :	 440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka 

		  Tel: (+94 11) 2 696 304, 2 697 821, 2 699 991 

		  Fax: (+94 11) 2 699 437 

		  E-mail : info.srilanka@lk.nestle.com 

		  Website : www.nestle.lk 

Legal Form	 :	 A public quoted Company with limited liability, incorporated in Sri Lanka on 29 
January 1981 and listed on the Main Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

Company Registration Number	 :	 PQ20 

Company Secretary	 :	 Keerthi Pathiraja 

Nestlé Lanka PLC Certifications	 :	 FSSC 22000 version 4.1. (Food Safety System Certification) 

		  ISO 9001:2015 (Quality Management System)

		  ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management Systems) 

		  ISO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health and Safety Management System) 

		  SLS Certification for Nestomalt Malted Food, Nestlé a+ Standardised Milk, 
Ceregrow and Cerelac Cereal Based Foods for infants and young children, 
Milkmaid Sweetened Condensed Milk, Nespray FortiGrow Full Cream Milk 
Powder, Nespray Nutri-Up and Nescafé Ice Coffee Flavoured Milks, Maggi 
Coconut Milk Powder and our entire Maggi noodle range. 

		  SLS 1672:2020 COVID-19 Safety Management System

		  Halal Certification, Kosher Certification, Organic Certification

Environmental Protection Licence No	 :	 345/2020 R18 		   

Registrars	 :	 SSP Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd. 

		  101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 3, Sri Lanka 

		  Tel : 011 2 573 894, 2 576 871 

Legal Advisors	 :	 Keerthi Pathiraja, Attorney-at-Law 

		  D. L. & F. De Saram (Attorneys-at-Law) 

		  Julius & Creasy (Attorneys-at-Law)

		  Nithya Partners (Attorneys-at-Law)	  

Auditors	 :	 Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants) 

Bankers	 :	 Citibank, N.A. 

		  Commercial Bank 

		  Hatton National Bank 

		  The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 

		  Standard Chartered Bank 

Financial Year	 :	 1 January to 31 December
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth (40th) Annual 
General Meeting of Nestlé Lanka PLC will be held at the 
“Wellness Café” of Nestlé Lanka PLC Head Office at No. 
440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 on Thursday 10 
June 2021, at 10.00 a.m. via audio visual means only for 
the following purposes:

1.	 To receive and consider the Annual Report of the 
Board of Directors on the affairs of the Company, 
Independent Auditors’ Report and the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

2.	 To approve a final dividend of Rs. 20.00 for the year 
ended 31 December 2020 as recommended by the 
Board of Directors.

3.	 To re-elect as Director Mr. Dian Gomes, in terms of 
Article 56, 57 and 58 of the Articles of Association.

4.	 To re-elect as Director Mr. Ranjan Seevaratnam, 
who is over the age of 70 years, and retires at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting in terms of 
Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, by 
passing the following ordinary resolution in terms of 
Section 211 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

	 “Resolved that Mr. Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is 77 
years of age, be and is hereby re- elected as a Director 
of the Company. It is hereby resolved and declared 
that the age limit of 70 years, referred to in Section 
210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, shall not 
apply to the said Director."

5.	 To re-elect as Director Mr. Mahen Dayananda, 
who is over the age of 70 years, and retires at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting in terms of 
Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, by 
passing the following ordinary resolution in terms of 
Section 211 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

	 “Resolved that Mr. Mahen Dayananda, who is 74 
years of age, be and is hereby re- elected as a Director 
of the Company. It is hereby resolved and declared 
that the age limit of 70 years, referred to in Section 
210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, shall not 
apply to the said Director."

6.	 To reappoint the Auditors M/s. Ernst & Young 
and to authorize the Directors to determine their 
remuneration.

By Order of the Board.
NESTLÉ LANKA PLC.

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary 

18 February 2021

Note:

1.	 In the interest of protecting public health and safety, 
the Fortieth (40th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
of Nestlé Lanka PLC will be a virtual meeting, held 
by participants joining in person or by proxy through 
audio or audio visual means only in the manner 
specified below:

2.	 The AGM is to be held in line with the guidelines 
given by the Colombo Stock Exchange and as per 
applicable laws. The AGM is scheduled on the 
assumption that no curfew will be in force on the 
AGM date and that there would be no restriction 
imposed by the authorities on conducting of 
meetings. 

3.	 The Board of Directors, the Company Secretary, and 
the Auditors will be present at the “Wellness Cafe” 
of Nestlé Lanka PLC, No. 440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, 
Colombo 10, at 10.00 a.m. on Thursday 10 June 
2021.

4.(a)	 The Board will make necessary arrangements for 
shareholders who wish to participate at the AGM via 
an online meeting platform, by ensuring that login 
information will be forwarded to them prior to the 
date of the AGM in the form of an audio/video link. 
To facilitate this process, they are required to send 
their email addresses via email to keerthi.pathiraja@
lk.nestle.com, via facsimile to +9411 4794520, 
or by post to Company Secretary to the Address 
No. 440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, not 
less than seven (07) days prior to the date of the 
meeting so that the meeting login information could 
be forwarded to the email address furnished.

4.b)	 To facilitate the appointment of proxies, the Form 
of Proxy is attached with the Notice of Meeting 
and the duly filled Forms of Proxy are required to 
be forwarded to the Company Secretary via e-mail 
to keerthi.pathiraja@lk.nestle.com, via facsimile 
to +9411 4794520, or by post addressed to the 
Company Secretary, Nestlé Lanka PLC, 440, T. 
B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, not less than 
forty eight (48) hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting. 

4.(c)	 Shareholders will be required to use internet with 
adequate speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting.

4.(d)	 Shareholders connecting from mobile devices or 
tablets, or through laptops connecting via mobile 
hotspots, may experience audio/video loss due 
to fluctuation of their respective networks. It is 
therefore recommended to use a stable Wi-Fi or 
LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches. 

5.	 Shareholders’ queries

	 If the shareholders wish to raise any queries/
questions during the meeting, they are advised to 
forward the same via e-mail to keerthi.pathiraja@
lk.nestle.com, via facsimile to +9411 4794520, 
or by post addressed to the Company Secretary, 
Nestlé Lanka PLC, 440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, 
Colombo 10, not less than seven (7) days prior 
to the date of the meeting, so that the Company 
Secretary will be able to compile the queries and 
forward same for the attention of the Board of 
Directors to be discussed at the meeting. 

6.	 The shareholders who wish to speak or raise verbal 
questions at the meeting will be able to join the 
meeting through audio or audio and visual means, 
and to facilitate this process, they are required to 
send their email addresses via email to keerthi.
pathiraja@lk.nestle.com, via facsimile to +9411 
4794520, or by post addressed to the Company 
Secretary, Nestlé Lanka PLC, 440, T. B. Jayah 
Mawatha, Colombo 10, not less than seven (07) 
days prior to the date of the meeting so that the 
meeting login information could be forwarded to the 
email address furnished.

7.	 Casting of votes by shareholders 

	 The shareholders are requested to appoint an 
Independent Non-Executive Director or any other 
Director of the Company of their choice as their 
proxy to represent them and vote on behalf of 
shareholders at the meeting.

8.	 The Annual Report of the Company for the year 
ended 31 December 2020 will be available for 
perusal on the Company website https://www.
nestle.lk/investors/key-facts-and-figures, and the 
Colombo Stock Exchange website on www.cse.lk.



108 Annual Report 2020Nestlé Lanka PLC 109

Notes
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Form of Proxy

Nestlé Lanka PLC

I / We........................................................................................................................................................................................of 

.................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

..................................................................................... being a member / members of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint Mr. Suresh Narayanan (whom failing), Mr. Fabrice Cavallin (whom failing), Mr. Gurcharan Grover (whom failing), 
Mr. David Steven McDaniel (whom failing), Mr. Mahen Dayananda (whom failing), Mr. Ranjan Seevaratnam (whom failing), 
Mr. Dian Gomes as my / our proxy to represent me/us and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Fortieth (40th) Annual 
General Meeting of Nestlé Lanka PLC, to be held on Thursday, 10 June 2021, at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment 
thereof.

Agenda / Resolution For Against
1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the affairs of the 

Company, Independent Auditors’ Report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2020.

2. To approve a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 as recommended by the 
Directors.

3. To re-elect as Director, Mr. Dian Gomes, in terms of Article 56, 57 and 58 of the Articles of 
Association.

4. To re-elect as Director Mr. Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is over the age of 70 years and retires 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007, by passing the following ordinary resolution, in terms of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

“Resolved that Mr. Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is 77 years of age, be and is hereby re-elected 
as a Director of the Company. It is hereby resolved and declared that the age limit of 70 
years, referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, shall not apply to the 
said Director”

5. To re-elect as a Director Mr. Mahen Dayananda, who is over the age of 70 years and retires 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007, by passing the following ordinary resolution in terms of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

“Resolved that Mr. Mahen Dayananda, who is 74 years of age, be and is hereby re-elected 
as a Director of the Company. It is hereby resolved and declared that the age limit of 70 
years, referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, shall not apply to the 
said Director”

6. To reappoint the Auditors M/s. Ernst & Young and to authorise the Directors to determine 
their remuneration.

Signed ............................................ on this ............. day of ..................................... 2021

Notes
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NESTLÉ LANKA PLC
40th Annual General Meeting 2021

Registration of Shareholders Details for Virtual AGM

Please provide the following details (mandatory):

NIC/PP/Company Registration No. of the Shareholder/s : .................................................................................................

Folio No. 	 : .................................................................................................

E-mail address of the Shareholder/(s)  	 : .................................................................................................

	   .................................................................................................

Contact No. – Mobile/Fixed 	 : .................................................................................................

Signature : ...................................................... Date: ......................................................

Instructions as to the completion
1.	 Kindly perfect the form of proxy legibly by filling in your full name and address in the spaces provided, along with the 

date and your signature.

2.	 If the proxy form is signed by an Attorney, the related Power of Attorney should also accompany the completed form 
of proxy for registration, if it has not been already registered with the Company.

3.	 If the Shareholder is a Company or Corporate Body, the proxy form should be executed under its common seal in 
accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

4.	 In the absence of any specific instructions as to voting, the proxy may use his/her discretion in exercising the vote on 
behalf of his appointor.

5.	 The completed form of proxy should be sent via e-mail to keerthi.pathiraja@lk.nestle.com, via facsimile to +9411 
4794520, or by post to the registered address of the Company at No. 440, T. B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, not 
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the Annual General Meeting.

Designed & produced by



Nestlé Lanka PLC
440, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.
Tel.: +94 11 2 699 991
Web: www.nestle.lk


